GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
A e e g P
B T
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT, CONVENTION. SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Meeting of Board of Directors

Wednesday, March 27, 2002
7:30 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.
County Administration Building Board Room, 3" Floor
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

AGENDA
L Call to Order
IL Approval of the Minutes of February 27, 2002 Board Meeting Action
::::nﬂon M.  Public Comment
. IV.  Presentation — Daniel Barcheski, CEO, Axios,Inc. Information
Joch:;?i':n V.  DeVos Place Construction Update - Erhardt/Hunt Information

Lew Chamberlin

VI. Committee Reports

E:;ZT,::S a. Finance Committee
Steven Heacock i. Approval of Paid Invoices Action
Birgit Klohs ii. Approval of SMG Financial Reports Action
Joseph Tomaselli for period ending February 28, 2002

iii. Approval of CAA Financial Report Action

for period ending February 28, 2002
iv. Acceptance of CAA Annual Financial Report Action
for period June 20, 2000 - June 30, 2001

\2 Approval of Expenditure for Rampage Action
Field System
b. Building Committee Information
c¢. Operations and Marketing Committee Information

i. CVB Update - Steve Wilson

VII. SMG Report Information
- Facilities Calendar

VIII. Other Business
IX. Next Meeting Date - Wednesday, April 24, 2002, 7:30 a.m., Kent County Building

X. Adjournment
ARENA

Van Andel A CENTH
an nae rena

Grand Cente
é?gnﬁ”k'é’,?aﬁ?shl 49503 GrazﬁSRMo-%meMA.vfi;sNoY
616.742.6600 n apids, :

Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 2:2:33%’228:




Item II

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, February 27, 2002

Call to Order

Chairman John Logie called the meeting to order at 7:30 am. Chairman Logie presided
and Secretary/Treasurer Klohs recorded.

Attendance
Members Present:  John Logie, Chairman
Lew Chamberlin
Clif Charles
David Frey
Birgit Klohs
Joseph Tomaselli
Members Absent: Steve Heacock
Staff/Others: Matt Barnes Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
Henry Boucher Showspan
David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
Leslee Fritz CVB
Jim Gray CAA Owner Representative
George Helmstead CVB
Robert Johnson SMG
Kurt Kimball Grand Rapids
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Steve Miller SMG
Jack Naudi The Grand Rapids Press
Bruce Schedlbauer  Department of Aeronautics
Bill Sewall Ehardt/Hunt Joint Venture
Dale Sommers CAA Owner Representative
Al Vanderberg Kent County
Susan Waddell CAA
Jim Watt SMG
Richard Wendt CAA Attorney
Robert White Grand Rapids
Steve Wilson CVB
Tim Wondergem Wondergem Consulting



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
February 27, 2002 — Page 2

1L Minutes of Prior Meetings

Motion: Mr. Frey, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve the Minutes of the January 23,
2002 meeting of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.

1. Public Comment
None.

IV.  Presentation — Bruce Schedlbauer
Marketing and Communications Manager, Department of Aeronautics

Mr. Schedlbauer illustrated how the Aeronautics Department participates with the CVB to
enhance convention activities: involvement in CVB’s familiarization tour efforts; partner with
CVB staff to furnish meeting planners with tours of the airport facilities; provide meeting space
for receptions, welcome rooms, €tc; or furnish special events desk. Although not yet utilized, the
technology is available to run scrolling messages on video monitors.

Air service at the Gerald R. Ford International Airport includes 12 passenger airlines with
nonstop service to 14 destinations. Although flights have decreased slightly since 9/11, the
airlines schedule 150 flights daily. Airfares in Grand Rapids are very competitive, ranging $35-
$65 less than Lansing, Flint, or Detroit. Service improvement is a continual goal and
Department officials have met with the carriers for the last 18 months on retention, expansion,
enhancement, or adding new services. In answer to a question from Mr. Tomaselli, Mr.
Schedibauer stated that Chicago is the hub with the most flights originating from Grand Rapids
and the average load factor is 60-70%. Mr. Frey inquired about delay of the north-side parking
ramp. Mr. Schedlbauer explained that the project is on hold temporarily since 9/11 due to cost
and operational issues. Since 9/11, airports have been mandated to expend funds on explosive
detection machines and their placement. These machines are the size of a mini-van and weigh a
couple thousand pounds. The Airport does not know yet how many it needs to acquire, but at
least a “small handful.” The terminal may need to be reconfi gured to accommodate the
machines. Once the parking structure project is back on line, the next phase is to connect the
parking structure to the building with a covered walkway.

Mr. Schedlbauer briefly touched on the federalization of employees at security checkpoints. In
response to the 9/11 terrorist attacks, the federal government has established the Transportation
Security Administration. At full staffing, the TSA is expected to become the largest non-military
federal agency with approximately 50,000 employees. By November, the current Airport
security personnel will become federal employees. The TSA has recognized the Gerald R. Ford
International Airport as a model facility. The Airport is one of 15 sites selected for a security
practices and procedures study.

V. DeVos Place Construction Update — Matt Barnes/Bill Sewall

Mr. Barnes reported that over 64% of the project budget had been committed. Contracts have
been awarded for work north of DeVos Hall. Work continues on the DeVos Hall Lobby
addition. Wood paneling has arrived, panels are being etched, and he terrazzo flooring is being
ground. The lobby remains on track for the April 17 opening. Mr. Sewall reported on progress



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
February 27, 2002 - Page 3

in the Grand Gallery and Exhibition Hall. The structural concrete subcontractor, Kent-Tillman,
has placed formwork and reinforcing steel for the first section of street-level floor slab. The
deep foundations contractor has completed approximately 50% of the caissons. Basement
demolition of the Hall of Justice continues, along with hauling debris and rubble from the site.
As of February 15, over 115,00 tons of dirt had been removed from the site to type II landfills.
The project management and design teams visited the structural steel fabricator’s plant. Steel
Service Corp. is organized and ready to begin mass production. Long-range planning has begun
for Phase IIL. If early start opportunities are identified, they will be analyzed for practicality.
Mr. Sommers reported that the construction crew has exceeded 70,000 work hours accident-free
due to the stringent safety program. Mr. Logie acknowledged Mr. Robert J ohnson who will be
providing consulting expertise to the CAA.

VL Committee Assignments

Mr. Logie announced that the change in leadership brings a few committee reassignments. The
Executive Committee will include Chairman John Logie, Vice Chairman David Frey, and
Secretary-Treasurer Birgit Klohs. Steve Heacock will join the Finance Commiittee and serve as
Chairman. Birgit Klohs will remain a Finance Committee member, but has stepped down as
Chairwoman due to increasing time commitments at The Right Place Program. All other
committee assignments remain the same. Chairman Logie thanked members for their service.

VII. Committee Reports

Finance Committee

Ms. Klohs presented the Finance Committee report.
a. Approval of Paid Invoices for the Period January 28 - February 14,2002

Motion: Mr. Frey, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve payment of invoices totaling
$5,375,764.60, as presented. Motion carried unanimously.

b. Approval of SMG Financial Statements
Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the SMG F inancial
Statements for the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center for the period ended January 31, 2002,
as presented. Motion carried unanimously.

c. Approval of CAA Financial Report

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the Grand Rapids — Kent
County Convention/Arena Authority Financial Statements for the period ended January 31,
2002, as presented. Motion carried unanimously.

Ms. Klohs reported that the State of Michigan has remitted the next-to-last $15 million
installment. The last $15 million installment should arrive in June.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
February 27, 2002 - Page 4

Building Committee

Mr. Frey reported that the Welsh Ballroom renovation has been focus of the Committee’s

attention. Progressive AE has presented preliminary architectural treatments and design
elements.

Operations and Marketing Committee

Mr. Chamberlin reported that SMG Marketing Director Lynne Ike presented an overview of the
event promotion process. The revamped website averages 2,097 visitors per day. Daily hits
average in excess of 40,000. A logo for DeVos Place is becoming an important issue for the
C/AA, CVB marketing, and onsite identification of the building. The asked Mr. MacKeigan to
identify relevant issues and present recommendations at the next meeting. Mr. MacKeigan
alerted the Committee to a possible Auto Show conflict in the year 2004. Mr. MacKeigan is
working with the parties to resolve the issues. The cost for the Van Andel Arena security gate
system is more significant than anticipated. The Committee will coordinate with the Finance
Committee to restructure the capital improvement budget. Mr. MacKeigan shared feedback from
the SMG annual conference in San Francisco. National concert promoters share an exalted view
of the Van Andel Arena and DeVos Hall.

Mr. Steve Wilson introduced Mr. George Helmstead, Vice President of Sales, and Leslee Fritz,
the new National Accounts Director. Mr. Wilson unveiled the new full-color scale model of
DeVos Place that travels to national trade shows. The CVB has partnered with Steelcase to
award a Leap Chair at these trade shows. Mr. Wilson then highlighted upcoming conventions.
The Meeting Company, a robotics competition, has booked an April convention. The event will
host 4,000 delegates, use 495 room nights, and have an estimated event impact of $139,006.
Mr. Wilson summarized a partial list of future leads: Gordon Food Service in 2004, National
Private Truck Council in 2004, National Fishing Lure Collectors Club in 2005, Food
Distributors International in 2007, and the American Jail Association in 2009. In answer to a
question from Mr. Tomaselli, Mr. Wilson stated the average convention hosts 1,000 delegates
and uses 500 room nights. Mr. Wilson suggested that Mr. Peter Highland present a national
perspective of the convention industry at the April meeting. Chairman Logie agreed.

VIII. SMG Report

Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan stated the Grand Center has been busy with public show season. The Home
and Garden Show is this weekend. The boat show, auto show, and golf show were held in
January and February. Upcoming events include Diana Krall, Harry Connick, Jr., and David
Copperfield. The Van Andel Arena had a busy February with five concerts, monster trucks, and
hockey. Upcoming events include Kid Rock, free style motorcross, Kenny Chesney, World’s
Toughest Rodeo, N’SYNC, Brooks and Dunn, and possibly the Who. The Van Andel Arena
will be featuring local, branded pizza and branded ice cream.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
February 27, 2002 — Page 5

IX. Other Business

Mr. Frey commended Kurt Kimball and staff on the new taxicab rules and regulations. Both
fleets and customers welcome the policies.

X. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:45 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs
Recording Secretary



DEVOS PLACE INFORMATIONAL PROJECT TIMELINE

DEVOS PERFORMANCE HALL-PHASE |

ItemV

YEAR 2001 2002
MONTH M J]A|S|]O|NI|D]|J FIM]A
DEVOS PERFORMANCE HALL

Demolition

Mini- Piles - Stair Towers

Slab on Grade

Structural Steel

Building Enclosed

Stone-Exterior

Lobby Interior Finishes

Substantial Complete

BROGRESSBAR

ot A




DEVOS PLACE INFORMATIONAL PROJECT TIMELINE

GRAND GALLERY-PHASE |l

YEAR 2001 2002
MONTH M S{O|N|DJJ F |l M M J J | A
GRAND GALLERY

Grouting/Cassions/Pile Caps

Perimeter Wallls Area E/F

Slab on Grade

Street Level Slab

Erect Steel

Decking

—

—
E—
—

Slab on Deck

CurtainWall/Glass/Metal Panels

Masonary & Stone

Building Enclousre




DEVOS PLACE INFORMATIONAL PROJECT TIMELINE

EXHIBIT HALL-PHASE I
YEAR 2001 2002
MONTH M| J[J[A]IS|TOINIDIJIF[M[A]IM|[JITJ[A[STO]|N

EXHIBIT HALL

Courts & Police Vacate

Asbestos Abatement Police

Demolition of Police Bidg

Demolition of Court Bld

Asbestos Abatement Courts i

West Basement Wall Area*

East Basement Wall Area*

Box Truss & Steel Erection

Roofing/Curtain Wall/Glass/Metal Panel

Balance of Area® e

Building Enclosed

*Work includes Excavation,Cassions, Pile Caps, Footings, Grade Beams, Exterior Walls, Underground MEP, Slab on Grade, Waffle Slab

PROGRESS BAR




Item VI1.a.i.

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS

DATE: March 13, 2002
TO: Birgit Klohs
Secretary / Treasurer

Grand Rapids - Kent COW Convention / Arena Authority

FROM: Jana M. Wallace
Fiscal Services Adyninistrative Analyst

SUBJECT: Invoices Processed for Payment

Attached for your review are lists of invoices processed for payment during the most
recent period. Expenditures by fund are summarized below.

Dates checks were issued Operating Fund Construction Fund
February 28, 2002 $ 27,028.97 $ 472,718.82
March 14, 2002 99,219.14 5,652,435.89
Payroll — 02/22/2002 2,131.96 --

Payroll — 03/08/2002 1,935.74 --
Expenditures by Fund $ 130,315.81 $6,125,154.71

Total funds expended by the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena
Authority during the period February 28 through March 14, 2002, were $6,255,470.52.

Please call me at 456-4514 if you need additional information.

Attachments




206220 mw( spcAedojseojoauied

sesuadxa uononIsuod-uou / bunesedo = O
sosuadxe pajejas uoonisuo) = 9

jusuwiAed Jo} pexiwgng sedioAuj [elol  6L'LbL'66Y $
uno29y Bunesedp wouy Jueuwshed Joj peyiwgng SedI0AUj jej0L  26'820°2Z $
JUN02Y UOHINIISUOD WO JuswAed Jo} peiwqng Sedl0AU] jej0L  Z8'8LL'ZLY §
sediAleg |eoastd A1) Aq peniwgng sedloAu| - S8010AU| [EJ01-gNS  6'820'LZ  $
2002 ‘1 yose - 1eBeuew sanesisiulwpe 1o siyausq eaueinsu]  200Z/5L/20  95'82C YiesH fwoud O
2002 Arenuep - Jgjua) puels) Joj SSOIAISS JIOM3S pue 18)BM  2002/12/20 096'G8L L Jainseal) Ay spidey puels 0
100Z Joqusoaq 19 JSQUIDAON - Sieiew [eeust a1 seowes |eBa7  Z00zZ/LE/L0  00°080°L OTdwbupmuosudig O
196png yg0 o sseaxe Ul anss) puoq ai saoinies [eBe]  Z00Z/LE/L0 GPOLL'L OTid wbupmuosupia O
ueuwureyd peoq BuioBino Joy preme Jusweoeidey  2002/90/20  60°28 D71 ‘sejeroossy g uoIpleM IPUAD O
Z00zZ Asenuer - 19juad puBlc) 10 SBOIAISS [BOLIOBIT  Z00Z/90/20  16'9L2'€Z ABiug siswnsuoy O
S091A108 [BISI4 )19 Aq pepiwqng Se10AU|
JesuiBuy )9 Aq pepiwiqng sedloAu| - |ejol-ans 00'€8L'89  $
10712/} 1-62/0} - 1oddodyieqy Buiwoped-yes :ssowues Buuseuibuz  1002/8L2L  00°008°8 oujyosice O
10/9Z/01-€0/01 - Joddooyieqy Buiwioped-yos :seomes Bupssuibug  100Z/2L/LL  00'PLZ'LY oujyosloen O
10/62/60-1.0/60 - Joddodyiaqy Buiuwoyiad-yes :sedines Bunseulbuz  1002/20/00 00°2oV'y Jujyoejoen 9
10/62/L0-20/.0 - 18ddooieqy Bulwioped-es :seopues buussuiBus  1002/LL/80  00°262°L U ysseen 9
10/10/20-#0/90 - 18ddodiaqy Buluiopsd-yes seomues buussuibuz  1002/61/20  00°0LP'9 U ysRen o
sesuibug Ay Aq peljiugng S8djoAu|
JeBeueyy joefoid Aq pepiwqng sedioAu - [eJ0L-qng  ZB'SES'POY ¢
3z eseyd Joj sxooq Adoo pue Buguud  200Z/LE/L0 ZL'069'E uogonpoidey BASUSSA O
3Z @seyd Joj syooq 98ds pue Buguud  Z00Z/62/L0  SST8 uogonpoidey ensusep O
©Z oseld o} $%00q 98ds pue Bunuld  200Z/€Z/I0  9L'LST uogonpoiday eAsusep O
sjojd Jojod pue sjulld  ZO0Z/GZ/L0  SB'PSE uogonposdey esusep O
sjas oz1s Jjey jo uopnquisip pue Sujund 20021210 OZ'6EL uojonpoidey efsusep O
200z Auenuer - sebueyd pejsenbes JeumO  ZO0Z/ZLZ0  9Z'ELS'T Jveassaibold O
Z00Z Asenuep - ooeds Jamo) Buiood  200Z/LL/20  €9'VLE Jvenssabold O
200z Arenuep - swoos Gugesw |ley uqiuxe eimng  Z00Z/LL/20  0L'6.9'0L Jvenssabold O
200z Aenuer - AglleD pueso) Je asedfsels 2002/LL/20  ¥6°1LGO'L Jveassabold O
200z Asenuep - juswuosue Buysew esedjesls Z00Z/LLZ0  OL'SLL Jvenssaboild D
200z Auenuer - soydesb jeuswiuosAug  Z00Z/LLIZ0  BZeLY'L Jyvenssalbold D
200z Auenuer - enjejuesaides sjoejyose ys-u0  200Z/LL/20  00°0ZL'El Jvenssaibold D
200z Arenuep - saoinies ubisep [eanoeNydly  Z00Z/LL/Z0  0L'G8'Z61 avenssabold D
BZR|d Jop[es 0} uoiedol-al ainjdinos aipuidg S04 sexsew azuosg  2002/12/20 08685 ‘00 JuswnUo uaned 2
2002 ‘'9) - | Auenige - Buidwinp |los pajeuiwsiuod  Z00Z/61/20 18'v28'6LL llypuet funoj emeno O
2002/90/20 nuy) sebieys suoyd Jejnjjeo seAnejussaidal sJBUMO  Z00Z/L0/Z0 €625} suogedunwwod |eeN O
200z Asenuep - saoises oseyd uojoNsUOD  ZOOZ/SLIZ0  £2'996°0G sjueynsuo) Supsey sieusiely O
200z Asenuer — podes [euy pue sisAleuy  200Z/€0/20  00°00. $ sjsAg Jnosgpild ‘iebujeg 9 Ausr O
Jobeuep j98l0ad Aq pepiwigng §9910AU|
peAtadal sadlAles | padinboe sjelselew jo uondissseq e)eq unowy aohed
8210AU|

£oijo4 Buideayyoog Jua.nng ayy Aq pezuoyiny se 'z00z '8z Aleniga uo Juawihed 10} passanold S8210AU| 4O IsI
ALIMOHLINY VNIYUV / NOILNISANOOD ALNNOD LN3IX - SAIdVY ANVYHO



Z01 €0 mul speAedojsadionuieed

sasuadxa Bujesado ; UOONIISUODI-UON =

0]

sasuadxe paje[es UOHONLSUOD JBJUSD UOHUSAUOD = D

JuswAed J0j passadold SadloAu] [eJoL  £0'SS9°LSL'S$
Junoddy Bunesado wous JuswAied 10} papiuqng SaDI0AU| [B3OL  ¥L°6LZ66  $
JUNOJIY UOHINIISUOD WO JusliAed J0j paRiWIqNS S3J0AU| [EJOL  68'SEV'2S9'S$
$991MIBS (82814 A)1D Aq papiuqng Sa210AU| - 88210AU| [ejoL-qNS  pL'6LZ'66  $
Bunesw Zooz ‘2z Aeniqad Joj sxoeus / sebelarsg  2002//2/20  89'LT 901AI9S 934400 JoH pidey
Z00z Aieniga4 - s2OIAISS WeS)s BURYY  Z002/82/20  OY'Shy'6e SHIOM 21(and jo 1deQg AunoQ jua)
200z Aenige - SaoIAIeS WeS)S JaJU) puBlD  2002/82/20  1¥0'6.9°0C SHIOM 21[and Jo 1deg AunoQ Juay
200z Aienugad - seoines weals YeMAS  Z002/82/20  6S°ESE'T SHOM 211and jo idag Auno9 Juay
quuoo safoldws Z00z '3 sekojdwa Z0/1L.002 - ueld Y1Or sJ6w uiwpy  2002/1 1/20 gs'Lov'e uogelodio) juswaiay YINOI
2002 Aew - Je - 19)ua) puels Joj aul| Jejem uoyoajoid alld  200Z/S0/€0  SZOE Jainseal] AyD spidey pueio
200z Ae - Jep - J8jua) puelo Joj aul| Jajem uonosjoid alld  200Z/S0/E0 6E8Y Jainseal] AyD spidey pues
2002 Ae - Je - J9)ua) puelo o) aul Jejem uooajoid alld  Z00Z/SO/E0 6ESY Jainseas) Ao spidey puel
2002 Aleniga4 - Bualy JOj SBDIAIOS JOMIS pue JBJeM  2002/82/20 08'6¥6'€ Jainseal| A)1o spidey puels)
2002 Aep - Je - J9jua) puelo 1oy aul| jojem uonoajoid Al 200Z/SO/E0  S2OE Jainseal) Ao spidey puelo
2002 Aep - Je - 19jua) puelo 1oy sul| Jojem uonojoid a4 ZOOZ/SO/E0  6E'8Y Jainseal ] AyQ spidey pueio
Kelo use4 Joj uonnquiuod leUOWR  2002/52/20 007001 yiomjeN Abojojuosen
2002 Aenigad - eualy JO) SBOIAJ8S |BOM0RIT 2002/92/20 22°€e0'LE ABiaug siawnsuo)
200z Aienigad - ylemA)g Joj saoiAIes [BO1O8|3  Z2002/S2/20  €L'6EE) ABiau3 siswnsuo)
200z ‘sl Atenigad4 papus pouad Joj seoines Buidearpioog  2002/92/20  00°'%29 d11 Jepeo auseg
$99|AI9S |edstd )10 Aq papiwuqng sadioAu|
JoBeuel 109(oid Aq papiwqng Sad10AU] - [BJOL-qNS  68'SEY'ZS9'S$
Z00zZ Menuga4 - saointes juswabeuew josfoid  2002/82/20 00'0zs'ecL H 9jeq ‘'s;lswwosg
2002 '8z - 81 Ateniga4 - Buidwnp |los pajeuiwejuo)  Z00Z/LO/EO0  66°€E0‘ES i1ypue Auno) emeno
200z Aieniqad - seoinies Juswsbeuew oslold  200Z/82/20  0S'ZLL'OL ou| Bupinsuog Aeio d 1
swied [euly uonels adjjod B 2SN JO [|BH - [BAOWAI SOISOGSY  200Z/F70/€0 ov'/88'8S ‘OU| SBJIAISS [BJUSWIUOHAUT B uone|nNsu|
G # JuswAed ssaiboid 1oy abeueloy  2002/82/20  00°Z80‘EEV JUN02DY MOJIST YV/Q OM-H¥D
suopIpuod [esauab / uolepunoy - UORONNSUOD ‘G| # Jwd ssaibold  2002/82/20  00°S6L'V0L'G$ BINJUSA JUIOl ¥ :JUNH - }pIeys3
JobBeuey j00foid Aq pepiuigng s8210AU]
paAledal sadiAJes | padinboe sjeusjew jo uondudsaQg ajeq junowy 8oAed
89%10AU]

folj04 Buidaaypoog juaing ay) Aq pazuoyiny se ‘200Z ‘v1 UdJe uo Juswhed Jo} passad0ld S8910AU| JO ISI
ALRIOHLNY YNIYYVY / NOILNIANOOD ALNNOJ LN3X - SAIdVY ANVYO

O0000000000O00O0O0

(CHORONORONS)



GRAND CENTER

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2002

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SIG Managed Facllity

Item VI1.a.ii.



GRAND CENTER
ROLLING FORECAST - YE 6/30/02

SUMMARY
Roll TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 238 109 347 318 29
ATTENDANCE 288,458 195,563 484,021 494,970 (10,949)
DIRECT EVENT REVENUE 881,5.62 409,224 1,290,786 1,133,612 157,174
ANCILLARY REVENUE 358,612 143,492 502,104 499,919 2,185
TOTAL EVENT REVENUE 1,240,174 552,716 1,792,890 1,633,531 159,359
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 79,775 25,666 105,441 136,000 (30,559)
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 1,319,949 578,382 1,898,331 1,769,531 128,800
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 54,966 23,236 78,202 81,433 3,231
FINANCE 85,019 63,394 148,413 145,356 (3.057)
MARKETING 28,188 20,133 48,321 139,854 91,533
OPERATIONS 341,502 128,794 470,296 445,575 (24,721)
EVENT SERVICES 221,539 176,295 397,834 417,843 20,009
BOX OFFICE 28,708 33,560 62,268 60,682 (1,586)
OVERHEAD 618,521 334,836 953,357 984,945 31,588

TOTAL OPERATING EXP. 1,378,441 ~ 780,248 2,158,691 2,275,688 116,997
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES (58,491) (201,866) (260,360) (506,157) 245,797
CAPITAL 63,339 48,661 112,000 112,000
NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER (121,831) (250,527) (372,360) (618,157) 245,797

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

*ESTIMATED**

MANAGEMENT FEE CALCULATION February marks the middle of the public show season, The Grand Center hosted

the Auto and Boat shows with good success. It was expected that both shows

BENCHMARK REVENUES $ 1,769,531 would show a decrease with the continuing downturn in the economy. The Auto

PROJECTED REVENUES $ 1,898,331 Show had = slight decrease, however, a decrease that could be contributed more
to bad weather and the rescheduling of the Super Bowl than anything else. The

PROJECTED INCREASE § 128,800 Boat show had no decrease from last year and revenue remained constant,

20% OF FIRST $500,000 3
25% OF $500,000 AND ABOVE $
$

The Grand Center continues to perform ahead of budgeted expectations for the
fiscal year. The Rock Network Motorcycle show was originally not budgeted, and
helped the Grand Cepfter come in above expectations for the month.

TOTAL INCENTIVE FEE .
TOTAL BASE F/Y 2002 $ 225,000
$

TOTAL FEE FOR F/Y 2002 225,000




GRAND CENTER
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS

FOR MONTH ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2002

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the month ending

and the YTD ending February 28, 2002, compared to budget and to the

prior year:

MONTH

Number of Events

Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary fncome

Other Income

Indirect Expenses

Net Income

YTD

Number of Events

Attendance

Direct Event Income
Ancillary Income

Other Income

Indirect Expenses

Net Income

Less Capital

Net Income after Capital

EVENT INCOME

February February February
Actual Budget FY 2001
29 26 43
60,155 70,600 103,264
$186,654 $164,852 $218,164
79,922 79,136 76,930
12,084 11,333 4,219
(190,822) (189,642) (168,990)
$87,838 $65,679 $130,324
YTD 2002 YTD 2002 YTD 2001
Actual Budget Prior Year
238 207 253
288,458 309,770 321,979
881,562 713,201 901,666
358,612 324,834 419,278
79,775 90,664 78,368
(1,378,441) (1,517,136) (1,339,080)
($58,491) ($388,437) $60,232
($63,339) ($63,339)
($121,831) ($451,776) $60,232

Event income for the month came in above expected levels for the month due to the
unbudgeted Rock Network Motorcycle show, and the success of the Auto and Boat

shows.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income performed at expected levels for the month.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Ancillary income performed at expected levels for the month.




GRAND CENTER
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 02/28/02

----------------- CURRENT---===-m=mecmamomocce —cnecmemmamaoeee=YTDemrrremscamemm e
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 180,737 160,000 204,710 857,772 701,535 895,562
SERVICES INCOME 5,917 4,852 13,454 23,791 11,666 6,105
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 186,654 164,852 218,164 881, 562 713,201 901, 666
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 26,926 28,231 27,390 118,616 114,289 181,777
NOVELTY 597 1,080 456 20,485 11,612 6,442
TELECOMMUNICATIONS 2,154 0 0 2,154 0 0
ELECTRICAL 2,182 8,400 0 20,566 14,760 ()
OTHER ANCILLARY 48,063 41,425 49,084 196,791 184,173 231,058
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 79,922 79,136 76,930 358,612 324,834 419,278
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 266,576 243,988 295,094 1,240,175 1,038,035 1,320,944
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 12,084 11,333 4,219 79,775 90,664 78,368
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 278,660 255,321 299,313 1,319,949 1,128,699 1,399,312
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 7,747 6,786 2,984 54,966 54,288 22,520
FINANCE 11,288 12,114 10,413 85,019 96,912 83,067
MARKETING 2,594 11,653 6,865 28,188 93,224 59,426
OPERATIONS 36,171 37,131 45,530 341,502 297,048 471,827
EVENT MANAGEMENT 33,366 34,820 ( 221,539 278,560 0
BOX OFFICE 4,276 5,058 3,261 28,705 40,464 24,789
OVERHEAD 95,381 82,080 99,937 618,521 656,640 677,451
INDIRECT EXPENSES 190,822 189,642 168,990 1,378,441 1,517,136 1,339,080
NET OPERATING INCOME 87,838 65,679 130,324 <58,491> <388,437> 60,232
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) . 0 0 0 63,339 63,339 0
OTHER EXPENSES 0 0 0 63,339 63,339 o
NET INCOME (LOSS) 87,838 65,679 130,324 <121, 831> <451,776> 60,232

=== =z=s ma ==

3



Advertising Billed
Stagehands Billed
Security Billed

Ushers & Tix Takers Billed
Box Office Billed
Ticketing Service Billed
Utilities Billed

City Police Fire Billed
Traffic Control Billed
EMT Medical Billed
Cleaning Billed
Insurance Billed
Telephone Billed

Other Production Billed

TOTAL SERVICE INCOME

Advertising Expense
Stagehand Wages

Security Wages

Contracted Security Expense
Ushers & T/T Wages

Ticket Sellers Wages
Ticket Service Charge Expense
Ccity Police Fire Expense
Traffic Control Expense
EMT Medical Expense
Cleaning Wages

Insurance Expense
PRODUCTION EXPENSE

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE

NET SERVICE INCOME

GRAND CENTER
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 02/28/02

---------------- CURRENT----~--a-vceeccce ~cowc-ce-e-----YEAR TO DATE------~------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
2,468 0 2,715 32,665 0 3,577

61,102 47,250 90,522 527,375 376,000 457,252
24,534 22,850 24,156 75,654 56,160 59,075
12,427 13,187 16,900 94,452 92,667 84,813
2,300 2,100 2,700 13,100 13,000 11,550
21,404 21,175 29,292 116,765 82,455 80,723
0 0 600 5,470 0 7,200
4,604 6,500 6,727 15,345 8,810 13,717
(] S0 44 10,438 8,020 3,950
2,789 2,418 3,154 15,177 14,940 11,890
0 0 S00 2,474 0 1,065

0 0 0 1,042 0 1,961
1,525 0 325 8,184 1s0 2,445
3,889 0 4,786 43,662 0 17,992
137,042 115,530 182,420 961,802 652,202 757,208
2,468 0 5,252 31,092 0 6,114
60,458 45,833 80,279 523,815 364,724 430,601
0 0 25,371 7,722 2,930 60,136
24,440 22,850 0 68,097 53,230 ]
8,699 9,076 11,830 66,117 64,712 59,369
1,919 .4,754 3,982 10,358 18,678 17,501
2,239 1,777 3,434 41,502 18,897 22,675
4,604 6,500 6,727 15,345 8,810 13,717
3,001 0 2,440 22,317 13,660 15,849
2,016 2,418 2,215 10,832 14,940 8,877
17,693 17,470 21,535 98,824 79,955 97,929
0 0 30 844 0 1,609
3,588 0 5,871 41,148 0 16,328
131,125 110,678 168,966 938,012 640,536 751,104
5,917 4,852 13,454 23,791 11,666 6,105




GRAND CENTER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 02/28/02

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY

FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

1,449,587
438,134
101,589

1,989,310

maacosssssaRs

351,828
76,629
818,448

318,320
545,916
<121,829>

1,989,310

s=osoonnoasss



GRAND CENTER
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 02/28/02

----------------- CURRENT---~w=v==n--cacmes =amemc-scccsacnamc =Y Decrmcammeocnocoonnon
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 41,032 46,705 26,017 327,714 373,640 225,138
Part-Time 14,056 10,741 18,040 97,847 85,928 91,913
Wages-Trade 86,290 72,348 105,391 680,443 578,784 625,043
Auto Expense 1,521 1,771 1,321 11,817 14,168 8,767
Taxes & Benefits 27,931 26,812 29,698 208,365 214,496 185,674
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <102, 046> <86,166> <125,699> <789,243> <689,328> <677,889>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 68,784 72,211 54,769 536,944 577,688 458,645
Contracted Security 4,361 5,200 <2,826> 38,538 41,600 29,815
Other Contracted Services 186 175 149 1,257 1,400 1,236
Travel & Entertainment 332 766 1,118 3,881 6,128 2,540
Corporate Travel 0 313 0 602 2,504 3,331
Meetings & Conventions 4,563 1,641 1,474 8,917 13,128 2,293
Dues & Subscriptions 0 141 0 537 1,128 774
Employee Training 122 7617 0 459 6,136 25
Miscellaneous Expense 0 0 0 66 0 110
Computer Expense 3,911 5,317 4,271 24,530 42,536 30,587
Professional Fees 2,563 1,667 1,125 11,382 13,336 9,000
Marketing & Advertising 199 833 13 9,197 6,664 6,709
Box Office Expenses <219> [¢] 268 169 0 387
Small Equipment 0 0 o] 0 0 813
Trash Removal 3,186 2,667 1,237 8,830 21,336 7,658
Equipment Rental 441 350 247 1,650 2,800 4,440
Landscaping 0 5} 244 0 0 4,045
Snow Removal 169 0 349 169 0 1,751
Exterminating 375 350 1,125 3,308 2,800 4,510
Cleaning 0 625 29%4 613 5,000 5,572
Construction Costs 572 0 0 1,350 0 [
Repairs & Maintenance 6,395 8,583 3,385 74,933 68,664 34,251
Supplies 5,018 11,270 5,798 60,585 90,160 87,928
Bank Service Charges 861 625 890 8,785 5,000 10,426
Insurance 16,243 8,583 8,020 69,867 68,664 77,633
Other Taxes 0 300 "o 0 2,400 2,535
Printing & Stationary 0 916 48 1,008 7,328 2,753
Office Supplies 155 625 1,376 5,119 5,000 5,722
Postage 0 250 251 709 2,000 1,089
Parking Expense 2,017 1,167 1,356 14,782 9,336 13,095
Telephone Long Distance 163 2,550 3,662 17,654 20,400 38,369
Utilities 51,142 43,000 65,153 318,320 344,000 372,731
Base Fee 18,750 18,750 14,658 150,000 150,000 104,095
Incentive Fee 535 ] 535 4,280 0 14,213
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 122,037 117,431 114,221 841,497 939,448 880,435
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 190,822 189,642 168,990 1,378,441 1,517,136 1,339,080

mzaas=s ss==



VAN ANDEL

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2002

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item VI1.a.ii.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2002

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE
NO. EVENTS 101 26 127 118 9
ATTENDANCE 542,326 202,363 744,689 711,300 33,389
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 808,834 499,427 1,308,261 1,077,595 230,666
ANCILLARY INCOME 1,019,111 562,727 1,581,838 1,332,520 249,318
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 1,827,945 1,062,154 2,890,099 2,410,115 479,984
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 1,196,258 529,117 1,725,375 1,699,681 25,694
TOTAL INCOME 3,024,203 1,591,271 4,615,474 4,109,796 505,678
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 61,550 22,999 84,549 82,334 (2,215)
FINANCE 108,605 46,805 155,410 151,806 (3,604)
MARKETING 129,872 20,270 150,142 147,483 (2,659)
OPERATIONS 724,937 299,605 1,024,542 1,019,556 (4,986)
BOX OFFICE 79,167 21,202 100,369 109,722 9,353
LUXURY SEATING 70,588 49,826 120,414 114,218 (6,196)
SKYWALK ADMIN 22,797 15,745 38,542 36,676 (1,866)
OVERHEAD 870,633 351,782 1,222,415 1,215,202 (7,213)
TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 2,068,149 828,234 2,896,383 2,876,997 (19,386)

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 956,053 763,037 1,719,091 1,232,799 486,292
LESS ALLOCATION FOR CAPITAL REPLACEMENT 46,715 125,000 171,715 171,715
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL 909,338 638,037 1,547,376 1,061,084 486,292
Benchmark revenues 4,199,913 Comments:
Final Statement revenues 4,615,474

Projected excess 415,561 February was a very successful month for the Arena as it had its most profitable

month in history. The highlights were the sold out Creed and Crosby, Stills, Nash, and

20% of first $500,000 excess - Young concerts, as well as, the 22,000 patrons for the 3 Monster Truck shows that
25% of $500,000 and above - included 2 sell outs.

Total incentive Fee -

2002 Base Fee 225,000 In addition to above, the Griffins had their strongest month for attendance, and the
Total Fee for FY 2002 225,000 Arena hosted very successful concerts by Alan Jackson, Aaron Carter, and Barry

Manilow. Based on conversation with show people, each show hosted during the
month performed well ahead of the average for their respective tours.

///M

General Manager




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2002

February February February YTD 6/30/02 YTD 6/30/02
Actual Budget Last Year Actual Budget

Number of Events 16 11 12 101 85
Attendance 110,349 67,000 70,807 542,326 496,450
Direct Event Income $225,444 $60,970 $60,483 $808,834 $800,699
Ancillary Income 253,997 131,059 123,180 1,019,111 1,027,751
Other Income 182,614 141,640 122,186 1,196,258 1,133,120
Indirect Expenses (248,214) (239,679) (239,725) (2,068,150) (1,916,002)
Net Revenue above Expenses $413,841 $93,990 $66,124 $956,053 $1,045,568
Less Capital Replacement ($10,163) ($46,715) ($46,715)
Net After Capital Replacement $413,841 $93,990 $55,961 $909,338 $998,853

EVENT INCOME

Event income performed ahead of budget due to the success of the Monster Trucks and 5 concerts held during the
month when only 1 was expected per the budget.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in above budget for the month. This increase was due to both the higher than expected event
number and the events hosted during the month performed very strong. Aaron Carter novelties were $10.59/per
head. Creed and CSN&Y both had per caps in the $5.00 area for food & beverage.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses performed at expected levels for the month.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 02/28/02

----------------- CURRENT-- == =-=-=====ccccce —cccrmmmammmmeeeaYTDmmmmmmmceomnoocoon e
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 282,009 131,855 130,306 1,255,695 1,126,500 1,237,173
SERVICES INCOME <56,565> <70,885> <69,823> <446,861> <325,801> <274,029>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 225,444 60,970 60,483 808,834 800,699 963,144
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 187,795 109,695 105,996 810,387 813,605 871,114
NOVELTY 61,842 15,666 11,344 176,819 187,318 159,603
OTHER ANCILLARY 4,360 5,698 5,840 31,905 26,828 28,222
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 253,997 131,059 123,180 1,019,111 1,027,751 1,058,938
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 479,441 192,029 183,663 1,827,945 1,828,450 2,022,083
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 182,614 141,640 122,186 1,196,258 1,133,120 1,035,113
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 662,055 333,669 305,849 3,024,203 2,961,570 3,057,195
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 7,057 6,861 8,654 61,550 54,888 64,791
FINANCE 13,213 12,650 10,055 108,605 101,200 81,431
MARKETING 19,121 12,220 11,106 129,872 96,330 100,873
LUXURY SEATING 9,608 9,518 8,447 70,588 76,144 69,742
OPERATIONS 73,377 84,962 86,790 724,937 679,696 736,368
BOX OFFICE 9,951 9,144 7,355 79,167 73,152 58,470
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 1,957 3,056 3,440 22,797 24,448 24,538
OVERHEAD 113,930 101,268 100,878 870,633 810,144 909,287
INDIRECT EXPENSES 248,214 239,679 236,725 2,068,150 1,916,002 2,045,500
NET OPERATING INCOME 413,841 93,990 69,124 956,053 1,045,568 1,011,696
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) 0 0 10,163 46,715 46,715 25,428
OTHER EXPENSES 0 0 10,163 46,715 46,715 25,428
NET INCOME (LOSS) 413,841 93,990 58,961 909,338 998,853 986,268




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 02/28/02

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

3,381,674
1,686,992
123,221

5,191,887

510,674
330,152
669,668
1,723,237

<951,688>
359,121
1,644,632
906,091

5,191,887



Advertising Billed
Sponsorship Income

Labor Billed

Changeover Setup Billed
Stagehands Billed

Security Billed

Ushers & Tix Takers Billed
Box Office Billed
Ticketing Service Billed
City Police Fire Billed

EMT Medical Billed
Production Materials Billed
Cleaning Billed

Insurance Billed

Group Sales Commissions Billed
Telephone Billed

Equipment Rental Billed
Damages Billed

Other Production Billed

TOTAL SERVICE INCOME
Advertising Expense

Sponsorship Expenses
Labor Wages

Contracted Changeover Setup Expense

Stagehand Wages

Contracted Security Expense
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense
Ticket Sellers Wages

Ticket Service Charge Expense
City Police Fire Expense

EMT Medical Expense
Contracted Cleaning Expense
Insurance Expense

Allocated Telephone Expense
Damage Expense

PRODUCTION EXPENSE

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE

NET SERVICE INCOME

VAN ANDEL ARENA

STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME

PERIOD ENDING 02/28/02

---------------- CURRENT---------------ev =ceueccecee-----YEAR TO DATE-------------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
57,087 o] 4,004 263,752 0 167,203
0 0 0 37,000 0 43,248
2,700 540 450 16,538 15,980 17,934
16,025 3,300 7,211 100,852 92,850 120,964
60,486 16,100 3,688 319,320 303,900 308,211
26,657 3,000 655 140,947 76,800 107,565
21,968 4,600 3,187 108,869 98,550 107,000
2,172 400 387 10,081 10,325 9,675
47,511 7,500 5,112 163,957 110,950 110,443
1,750 336 1,200 9,236 6,384 8,543
2,925 2,450 2,350 18,185 9,210 15,573
205 0 0 205 0 0
16,969 3,600 0 92,384 98,800 88,933
0 0 0 2,592 0 2,240
0 0 92 1,398 0 6,281
3,655 1,325 880 19,725 14,525 14,332
0 0 0 0 0 75
0 0 250 0 0 350
24,422 4,000 8,855 226,954 155,260 247,125
284,501 47,151 38,320 1,531,994 993,534 1,375,694
56,941 0 <991> 291,762 0 172,926
[ 0 0 2,800 0 13,118
2,295 459 383 14,057 13,584 15,244
36,599 15,050 12,694 194,285 142,051 172,691
58,686 17,559 8,673 349,353 337,729 296,647
31,406 15,500 16,876 196,661 116,150 160,257
42,676 24,660 25,317 208,587 181,980 204,341
1,846 0 329 8,569 0 8,224
40,834 7,500 4,406 155,619 119,450 112,807
1,750 336 1,200 7,836 8,220 6,380
3,046 3,180 2,948 33,626 16,202 7,018
40,993 29,573 30,359 221,719 215,374 213,822
0 [ 0 2,776 0 10,044
925 149 0 4,700 3,565 3,385
0 0 387 0 0 387
23,069 4,070 5,564 286,507 165,030 252,433
341,066 118,036 108,143 1,978,856 1,319,335 1,649,723
<56,565> <70,885> <69,823> <446,861> <325,801> <274,029>




VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 02/28/02

----------------- CURRENT--=-==c-==-cm=msm== ==e-ecccssmameocc=c-YTPuour-mom-noooooeamn-

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 40,108 42,706 32,570 347,707 341,648 272,759
Part-Time 9,468 2,305 11,074 46,550 17,010 55,270
Wages-Trade 79,470 68,160 35,907 532,754 545,280 504,274
Auto Expense 777 810 531 5,971 6,480 4,848
Taxes & Benefits 28,957 28,648 18,917 194,718 229,184 172,113
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <74,098> <64,906> <14,553> <439,968> <519,248> <340,714>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 84,682 77,723 84,445 687,731 620,354 668,549
Contracted Security 4,289 16,500 14,930 131,761 132,000 134,002
Contracted Cleaning 0 2,000 2,017 16,139 16,000 14,122
Other Contracted Sexrvices 308 300 251 2,722 2,400 2,119
Travel & Entertainment 2,032 442 1,550 8,066 3,536 10,173
Corporate Travel 0 625 [+} 602 5,000 3,617
Meetings & Conventions 4,629 1,083 0 7,791 8,664 235
Dues & Subscriptions 14 108 199 2,945 864 1,404
Employee Training 122 975 0 2,501 7,800 1,734
Computer Expense 2,149 5,317 1,814 73,825 42,536 23,930
Professional Fees 3,034 2,042 1,500 19,772 16,336 12,000
Marketing & Advertising 10,154 7,250 3,964 72,450 58,000 52,986
Box Office Expenses 1,209 0 <922> 1,257 0 <1,822>
Small Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 2,143
Trash Removal 2,743 1,250 1,609 10,681 10,000 11,567
Equipment Rental 1,366 650 1,296 11,425 5,200 12,396
Landscaping 0 292 0 3,561 2,336 2,130
Exterminating 0 333 248 1,980 2,664 2,408
Cleaning 0 450 0 2,810 3,600 1,060
Repairs & Maintenance 2,236 10,666 4,645 60,271 85,328 75,790
Supplies 18,135 15,091 20,105 151,684 120,728 143,103
Bank Service Charges 1,964 1,167 4,585 9,058 9,336 8,846
Insurance 15,294 11,512 10,274 88,568 92,096 77,024
Other Taxes 0 300 0 69 2,400 3,062
Printing & Stationary 400 1,917 5,267 5,212 15,336 11,230
Office Supplies 968 1,000 850 11,560 8,000 7,408
Postage 1,450 1,050 145 5,516 8,400 5,940
Parking Expense 1,250 1,592 0 12,054 12,736 11,680
Telephone Long Distance 4,427 4,300 2,518 33,460 34,400 31,447
Utilities 69,273 57,483 73,715 501,859 459,864 487,449
Base Fee 18,750 18,750 21,988 150,000 150,000 171,445
Incentive Fee 0 0 <19,180> 0 0 58,000
Depreciation 0 491 0 1] 3,928 0
Amortization 0 0 1,963 5,737 0 15,707
Common Area Expense <1,736> <2,710> <3,051> <20,218> <21,680> <14,000>
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <925> <270> 0 <4,700> <2,160> <3,385>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 163,532 161,956 152,279 1,380,418 1,295,648 1,376,951
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 248,214 239,679 236,725 2,068,150 1,916,002 2,045,500




Item VI.a.lii.

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Eight Months Ended February 28, 2002

il BEENE GARTER LLP



ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have compiled the accompanying statements of cash receipts and disbursements and cash
receipts and disbursements - budget to actual for the operating account and construction account
of the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority for the eight months ended
February 28, 2002, in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. These statements do
not include the cash receipts and disbursements of the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center which
are operated by the Authority. The financial statements presented have been prepared on the
cash basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of financial statements information that is the
representation of management. We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial
statements and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on them.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures ordinarily included in financial
statements prepared on the cash basis of accounting. If the omitted disclosures were included in
the financial statements, they might influence the user's conclusions about the Authority's cash
receipts and disbursements. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those
who are not informed about such matters.

Ew” ot L

March 14, 2002
Grand Rapids, Michigan

BEENE GARTER LLP
50 MONROE NW T 616.235.5200
il U a0 o F 616.235.5285
GRAND RAPIDS

MICHIGAN BUSINESS ADVISORS » CPAS » FINANCIAL SERVICES

49503-2679 INTERNATIONALLY KNOWN AS MOORE STEPHENS BEENE GARTER PLC www.beenegarter.com

1.800.824.7882



—%ﬁ_——
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E

i) BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement A

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements
From July 1, 2001 to February 28, 2002

RECEIPTS

Beginning Balance - July 1, 2001
State of Michigan

CCBA Capital Contributions
interest Deposits

Transfer from Operating Account
Transfer from Construction Account
Miscellaneous Revenue

Facility Operations

Total Cash Receipts

DISBURSEMENTS

Checks issued prior months
Checks issued 02/14/02
Checks issued 02/28/02
Payroll Expenditures
Expense Reimbursement
Bank fees

Total Cash Disbursements

Net Pooied Cash and Investments

" BEENE GARTER LLP

Operating Construction Retainage
Account Account Account
$ 3,578,979.18 $ 5,410,627.09 $ -
- 30,000,000.00 -
- 10,998,616.13 -

78,492.00 158,539.54 171.49
- 2,000,000.00 -

- - 934,801.00
- 23,153.00 -
951,688.03 - -

4,609,159.21 48,590,935.76 934,972.49
2,866,602.66 15,513,612.03 -
101,154.31 4,626,165.39 -
27,028.97 472,718.82 -
36,546.28 - -
(3,000.06) (1,220.79) -
6.01 (306.34) -
3,028,338.17 20,610,969.11 -

$ 1,580,821.04 $ 27,979,966.65 $ 934,972.49




Statement B

GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Operations)
From July 1, 2001 to February 28, 2002

OPERATING ACCOUNT
Facilities Operations Capital Replacement
Budget Actual Budget Actual
RECEIPTS
Facility Operations $ 1,695,443 $ 951,688 $ 237,000 3 -
Interest on Investments 100,000 45,632 40,000 32,860
Capital Replacement Reserve Transfer 570,357 - (570,357) -
From / (To) Fund Balance - - 530,357 -
TOTAL RECEIPTS 2,365,800 997,320 237,000 32,860
DISBURSEMENTS
Accounting / Auditing Services 20,000 13,342 - -
Bank Fees - 6 - -
Insurance - Property and Liability 15,000 2,966 - -
Legal Services 55,000 19,387 - -
Other Contractural Services 8,150 27,883 - -
Facility Management Fees - 161,122 - -
Meeting Expense 650 632 - -
Supplies 1,200 1,022 - -
Transfer to Construction Account 1,000,000 2,000,000 - -
Sub-total Service Disbursements 1,100,000 2,216,359 - -
Electricity 611,000 470,698 - -
Steam 527,000 263,052 - -
Water and Sewer 67,800 37,734 - . -
Sub-total Utility Disbursements 1,205,800 771,484 - -
Building Additions and Improvements - - 225,000 -
Facility Equipment Acquisition - - 12,000 -
Sub-total Capital Disbursements - - 237,000 -
Employee Wages 50,000 35,636 - -
Employee Benefits 10,000 4,860 - -
Sub-total Payroll Disbursements 60,000 40,495 - -
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 2,365,800 3,028,338 237,000 -
Excess / (Deficit) of Funds $ - $ (2,031,018) $ - $ 32,860
See Comments See Comments
1and 2 1and 2

Comment 1: Facilities Operations and Capital Replacement budgets were approved by the GR-KC Convention / Arena
Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on June 27, 2001.

Comment 2: Facilities Operations and Capital Replacement columns include receipts and disbursements processed by the
C/AA. SMG receipts and disbursements are reported separately in the Van Andel Arena and Grand Center
financial statements prepared by SMG.

il BEENE GARTER LLP



Statement C
GRAND RAPIDS - KENT COUNTY CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

Statement of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - Budget to Actual (Construction)

From July 1, 2001 to February 28, 2002

CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT
Monroe Ave Relocation Convention Center Construction
Budget Actual Budget Actual
RECEIPTS
State of Michigan $ 2,630,697 $ - $ 27,369,303 $ 30,000,000
City / County Bldg Authority Capital Contrib. - - - 10,998,616
Transfer from Operating Fund - - 1,000,000 2,000,000
Miscellaneous Revenue - 23,153 - -
Interest on Investments 54,830 54,355 445,170 104,184
TOTAL RECEIPTS 2,685,527 77,508 28,814,473 43,102,801
DISBURSEMENTS
Architectural and Engineering Services 490,000 328,574 6,000,000 3,375,886
Construction Material Testing - - 400,000 415,545
Construction in Progress - GMP 2,175,527 137,743 21,425,973 14,166,436
Sub-total Construction Disbursements 2,665,527 466,317 27,825,973 17,957,867
Bank Fees - - - (306)
Insurance -Property / Liability - - 40,000 42,670
Legal Services 15,000 1,251 50,000 7,656
Project Manager / Owner's Representative - - 285,000 168,564
Other Contractual Services 5,000 - 600,000 1,913,676
Sub-total Service Disbursements 20,000 1,251 975,000 2,132,260
Electricity - - - 38,376
Steam - - - 11,877
Water and Sewer - - - 1,869
Sub-totai Utility Disbursements - - - 52,122
Advertising / Promotion / Publicity - - 5,000 -
Supplies - - 1,000 -
Postage / Express - - 500 -
Printing and Binding - - 5,000 -
Telephone - - 2,000 1,152
Sub-total Supplies Disbursements - - 13,500 1,152
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 2,685,527 467,568 28,814,473 20,143,401
Excess / (Deficit) of Funds $ - $ (390,060) - $ 22,959,400

See Comment

See Comment

Comment: Convention Center Construction budget was approved by the Grand Rapids - Kent County
Convention / Arena Authority at its regularly scheduled meeting on June 27, 2001.

" BEENE GARTER LLP



Item VI.a.iv.

Grand Rapids — Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Financial Statements
For the Period From Its Inception of June 20, 2000
through June 30, 2001



Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Index
Page(s)

Managements' Discussion and Analysis 1
Financial Statements

Report of Independent Accountants 13
Statement of Net Assets 14
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 15
Statement of Cash Flows 16
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual 17

Notes to Financial Statements 18-22



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority's (the "Authority") first
financial report presents a discussion and analysis of the Authority's financial performance from its
inception on June 20, 2000, through the end of its fiscal year on June 30, 2001. This discussion has
been prepared by management along with the financial statements and related footnote disclosures and
should be read in conjunction with and is qualified in its entirety by the financial statements and
footnotes. This discussion and analysis is designed to focus on current activities, resulting changes and
currently known facts. This financial report is the first report since the inception of the Authority;
therefore, only one year of financial data is presented. In future years a comparative analysis will be
presented. The financial statements, footnotes and this discussion are the responsibility of Authority
management.

USING THE FINANCIAL REPORT

This financial report consists of a series of financial statements, prepared in accordance with the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements -
and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, GASB Statement No.
36, Recipient Reporting for Certain Shared Nonexchange Revenues, GASB Statement No. 37, Basic
Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments: Omnibus, and GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures.
The financial statements prepared under the GASB Statement No. 34 requirements focus on the
financial condition of the unit of government, the results of operations, and cash flows of the unit of
government as a whole.

One of the most important questions asked about governmental finances is whether the unit of
government as a whole is better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities. The key to
understanding this question is the Statement of Net Assets, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Assets and the Statement of Cash Flows. The new format prescribed by these
statements presents financial information in a form similar to that used by corporations.

The Statement of Net Assets includes all of the Authority's assets and liabilities. It is prepared under
the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues and assets are recognized when the service is
provided and expenses and liabilities are recognized when others provide the service, regardless of
when cash is exchanged. The Authority's net assets are one indicator of the Authority's financial health.
Over time, increases or decreases in net assets are one indicator of the improvement or erosion of the
Authority's financial health.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets presents the revenues earned and the
expenses incurred during the year. Activities are reported as operating, nonoperating or capital
contributions. The new financial reporting model classifies investment income and the Grand Rapids
Downtown Development Authority's one-time reserve transfers as nonoperating revenues. On July 1,
2000, the City of Grand Rapids (the "City") contributed to the Authority ownership of the capital assets
related to the Grand Center including land, buildings, fixtures and equipment. The County (the
"County") of Kent also contributed land for the construction site. The value of these contributed capital
assets is reflected on the statement as a capital contribution along with appropriations from the State of
Michigan and the one-time transfer in of Grand Center and Van Andel Arena net assets. The utilization
of long-lived capital assets is reflected in this statement as depreciation, which amortizes the cost of an
asset over its expected useful life. Note that net assets at end of period on this statement agrees with
total net assets on the Statement of Net Assets.



Other important factors to consider when evaluating financial viability is the Authority's ability to meet
financial obligations as they are due and its ability to generate future net cash flows. The Statement of
Cash Flows presents the information related to cash inflows and outflows summarized by operating,
noncapital financing, capital and related financing, and investing activities. In addition to information
about cash transactions, the Statement of Cash Flows reconciles operating income on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets with net cash provided by operating activities on the
Statement of Cash Flows.

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Condensed Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2001
Assets PERCENT
Current assets $ 13,982,055 19.9%
Noncurrent assets, capital, net 56,158,205 80.1%
Total Assets $ 70,140,260 100.0%
Liabilities

Current liabilities 7,442,033 100.0%
Total Liabilities ' $ _7.442,033 100.0%
Net assets
Invested in capital assets 56,158,205 89.6%
Unrestricted 6,540,022 10.4%
Total Net Assets $ 62,698,227 100.0%

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents of $12.0 million consist of cash in the Authority bank accounts and
investments in cash equivalents held by investment managers. Cash equivalent investments are
recorded at fair market value.

Investments

In accordance with Act 20 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1943, as amended, the Authority approved
an investment policy at its regular meeting on July 20, 2000. The policy specifies the objectives of
investing activities and standards of care as well as suitable and authorized investments. Investments of
$0.6 million on the Statement of Net Assets have maturities greater than 90 days from the date of
purchase. Investments are recorded at fair market value.

Receivables, net

Receivables, net, of $1.2 million relate to Van Andel Arena and Grand Center operations and arise
primarily from two types of activities — fees and rentals related to customer utilization of the facilities
and fees and percentages of sales related to vendor operations. The receivables are shown net of the
allowance for doubtful accounts of $86,000.



NONCURRENT ASSETS

Capital Assets, net
Capital assets, net, of $56.2 million consists of land, buildings, equipment, furniture and construction in
progress less accumulated depreciation.

On July 1, 2000, the City and the County transferred ownership to the Authority of the convention
center site bounded roughly by Michigan Street to the north, Monroe Avenue to the east, Lyon Street to
the south and the Grand River to the west. The City of Grand Rapids also transferred to the Authority
ownership of the Welsh Auditorium, DeVos Hall and Grand Center buildings including all fixtures,
equipment and furniture. Transferred assets totaled $40 million.

During the period from June 20, 2000 to June 30, 2001, construction began on the new convention
center, to be known as De Vos Place. Overall construction project costs are currently estimated to be
$218.5 million. Construction costs incurred and recorded as construction in progress during the period
ending June 30, 2001, were $16.9 million.

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses of $2.6 million represent amounts due at June 30, 2001 for
goods and services received prior to the end of the fiscal year.

Advance Ticket Sales and Advance Deposits

The Van Andel Arena and the Grand Center incur liabilities for cash received from ticket sales and
event deposits received in advance of an event. At June 30, 2001, these liabilities were $1.3 million. A
corresponding amount is held in a separate escrow account and operating revenues are not recognized
until the related event occurs.

Deferred Revenue

The State of Michigan has agreed to provide $65 million in partial support of the new convention center
construction project. Under the agreement entered into between the Authority and the State of
Michigan, the Department of Management and Budget released the first installment in June 2000.
Since the State's support is in the form of a grant, revenue can be recognized only as project-related
expenditures are incurred. Unexpended grant funds received from the State are recorded as deferred
revenue and were $3.1 million at June 30 2001.

Deferred revenue is also associated with Grand Center and Van Andel Arena operations. These
deferred revenues are primarily advanced billings and collections for luxury boxes and advertising
contracts. At June 30, 2001, deferred revenue relating to facility operations was $0.4 million.

NET ASSETS

Net assets represent the difference between Authority assets and liabilities. Total net assets at June 30,
2001 are nearly $62.7 million.

Invested in Capital Assets

Investments in capital assets of $56.2 million include the historical acquisition costs of land, buildings,
equipment and furniture less accumulated depreciation as well as convention center construction costs
incurred and recorded as construction in progress.



Unrestricted Net Assets

Unrestricted net assets represent balances from operational activities that have not been restricted by
parties external to the Authority. The unrestricted net assets include funds that have been designated by
the Authority for specific purposes as well as amounts that have been contractually committed for
goods and services that have not yet been received.

The following is a breakdown of the unrestricted net assets:

Operating reserve for existing facilities and administration 3 4,727,023
Facility replacement reserve 1,053,603
Construction fund investment income 759,396

Total unrestricted net assets $ 6,540,022

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
For the Period June 20, 2000 through June 30, 2001

Operating revenues, facilities $6,687,453
Operating expenses 6,265,009
Operating income 422,444

Nonoperating revenues
Downtown Development Authority 2,302,121
Other nonoperating income 1,279,087
Net nonoperating revenues 3,581,208

Income before capital contributions

Capital contributions
Transfer of capital assets from the City of Grand Rapids and

County of Kent 40,032,974
Capital appropriations from the State of Michigan 16,908,170
Transfer in of net assets from the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena 1,753,431

Total capital contributions 58,694,575
Total increase in net assets 62,698,227
Net assets

Net assets at the beginning of the period -
Net assets at the end of the period $62,698,227

4,003,652



REVENUES

Operating Revenues, Facilities

Operating revenues, facilities are generated by the Authority's Grand Center and Van Andel Arena.
The Authority assumed responsibility for Grand Center and Van Andel Arena operations on July 1,
2000. Daily operation of these facilities is performed by SMG, a Pennsylvania general partnership,
with whom the Authority had a management agreement ending June 30, 2001. A new management
agreement, effective July 1, 2001 was approved by the Authority on June 27, 2001. This new
agreement ends at midnight on June 30, 2006 unless extended, at the sole discretion of the Authority,
for the renewal term commencing July 1, 2006, and ending on June 30, 2011.

SMG is engaged in the business of providing management services for public assembly facilities
throughout North America and Europe. At the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena, SMG performs and
furnishes management services and systems as are appropriate or necessary to operate, maintain,
manage and promote the facilities in a manner consistent with SMG policies and procedures and the
operations of other similar first-class facilities. SMG has authority over the day-to-day operation of the
facilities and all activities therein provided that SMG follows the booking policy for each facility as
amended by the Authority and all other policies and guidelines of the Authority.

Grand Center and Van Andel Arena operating revenues were $6,687,453 for the period July 1, 2000 to
June 30, 2001. Operating revenues include event revenues as well as ancillary revenues related to
luxury seating, advertising and percentages of gross receipts for vendor sales of food, beverages and
novelties.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses include costs associated with the daily operation of the Grand Center and the Van
Andel Arena as well as administrative costs related to the overall operation of the Authority. In the
period ending June 30, 2001, administrative expenses were primarily for insurance and legal and
bookkeeping services. In May 2001, the Authority hired an administrative manager who is responsible
for coordinating the professional and administrative operations of the Authority.

Grand Center and Van Andel Arena operating expenses were $6,110,759 for the period July 1, 2000 to
June 30, 2001. Authority administrative expenses incurred from June 20, 2000 through June 30, 2001
were $154,250.

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Downtown Development Authority _

As part of the agreement transferring responsibility for Van Andel Arena operations to the Authority on
July 1, 2000, the Downtown Development Authority transferred to the Authority operating and capital
replacement reserves which are recognized on these statements as nonoperating revenues. Funds
transferred for facility replacement projects totaled $1,055,462. Funds transferred for operations were
$1,246,659.

Other Nonoperating Revenues
Other nonoperating revenues consist primarily of investment and interest revenues of $1.1 million.



CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Transfer of Capital Assets from the City of Grand Rapids and County of Kent

On July 1, 2000, the City and the County transferred to the Authority ownership of the 11.5-acre
convention center building site. In addition, the City transferred to the Authority ownership of the
current Grand Center capital assets including Welsh Auditorium, DeVos Hall, and the Grand Hall as
well as the equipment, furniture, and fixtures inside these structures.

The value of the convention center building site of $22.2 million was calculated using the estimated
cost per square foot, adjusted for inflation, as determined by an outside appraiser hired by the County in
1996. The value of the transferred buildings, equipment, furniture and fixtures was recorded by the
Authority in the amount of $17.8 million, which is equal to the City's June 30, 2000 net book value for
the assets.

Capital Appropriations from the State of Michigan

Since the State's participation in the convention center construction project is in the form of a grant,
project revenue from the State is recognized when expenditures are incurred. In the period ending
June 30, 2001, the Authority expended $16,908,170 for construction project-related expenses. The
same amount is shown here as a capital contribution as well as on the Statement of Net Assets as the
primary component of construction in progress.

Transfer In of Net Assets from the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena

This $1,753,431 is primarily the difference between assets and liabilities on the June 30, 2000 Grand
Center and Van Andel Arena statements of net assets. When the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena
assets and liabilities were transferred to the Authority on July 1, 2000 the difference between the assets
and liabilities, also known as net assets, for these facilities was recognized as a one-time capital
contribution to the Authority.



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows ~ Direct Method
For the Period June 20, 2000 through June 30, 2001

Cash and cash equivalents provided by:

Operating activities $ 2,842,703
Noncapital financing activities - 2,513,305
Capital and related financing activities 6,185,619
Investing activities 475,515
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 12,017,142

Cash and cash equivalents — beginning of the period -
Cash and cash equivalents — end of the period $ 12,017,142

Another way to assess the financial health of the Authority is to look at the Statement of Cash Flows.
Its primary purpose is to provide relevant information about the cash receipts and cash payments of the
Authority during a period. The Statement of Cash Flows also helps users assess the ability to generate
future net cash flows and to meet obligations as they come due.

Cash receipts from operating activities were $6,790,383 for facility operations while payments made to
SMG employees were $1,770,995 and to contractors and suppliers were $2,176,685.

Noncapital financing activities include $2,302,121 of cash transferred to the Authority by the
Downtown Development Authority from its operating and facility replacement reserves.

Capital and related financing activities include the $20,000,000 in construction project support received
from the State of Michigan in June 2000, less construction project related and capital replacement
payments of $16,939,114. This line item also includes one-time cash receipts of $3,124,733 from
Grand Center and Van Andel Arena operations, which were previously included on the Downtown
Development Authority and City financial statements.



SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL — ANALYSIS OF VARIANCES

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Condensed Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Budget and Actual
For the Period June 20, 2000 through June 30, 2001
Variance
Favorable /
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Operating revenues, facilities $ 6,503,253 $ 6,687,453 § 184,200
Operating expenses, facilities 5,498,291 6,265,009 (766,718)
Operating income 1,004,962 422,444 (582,518)
Nonoperating revenues
Downtown Development Authority 3,975,000 2,302,121 (1,672,879)
Other nonoperating income (207,265) 1,279,087 1,486,352
Net nonoperating revenue before capital contributions 3,767,735 3,581,208 (186,527)
Capital contributions
Capital appropriations from State of Michigan 35,000,000 16,908,170  (18,091,830)
Construction expenditures (1) (36,000,000) (16,907,825) 19,092,175
Transfer of capital assets from the City of Grand Rapids
and from the County of Kent - 40,032,974 40,032,974
Transfer in of net assets from the Grand Center
and Van Andel Arena - 1,753,431 1,753,431
Total capital contributions (1,000,000) 41,786,750 42,786,750
Net nonoperating revenue 2,767,735 45,367,958 42,600,223
Increase in net assets 3,772,697 45,790,402 42,017,705
Add construction expenditures (1) 36,000,000 16,907,825  (19,092,175)
39,772,697 62,698,227 22,925,530
Net assets, beginning of the period - - -
Net assets, end of the period $39,772,697 $62,698,227  $22,925,530

(1) The budget and actual presentation includes construction expenses which are generally capitalized

under generally accepted accounting principles.




OPERATING EXPENSES, FACILITIES
Operating expenses, facilities experienced a negative variance of $766,718. This is explained by the
following individual variances:

Contractual Services

According to the management agreement between the Authority and SMG, SMG is entitled to an
annual incentive fee, when certain conditions are met, in addition to the base facility management fee.
Both the Authority and the facilities included the estimated current year incentive fees in their
respective budgets, which resulted in a positive variance of $116,035. Including additional minor
variances, the net positive variance for contractual services is $113,702.

Depreciation
There is a negative variance for depreciation in the amount of $813,883 since the Authority did not
budget for this non-cash transaction.

Professional Services

Professional services had a $79,020 overall negative variance. Under-estimation of the start-up costs
associated with creating the Authority as a legal entity created a negative variance of $67,148. Both the
Grand Center and Van Andel Arena incurred small operation-related negative variances that totaled
$11,872.

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Nonoperating revenues experienced a negative variance of $186,527. This is explained by the
following individual variances:

Downtown Development Authority

Budgeted revenue from the Downtown Development Authority consisted of a $3,000,000 operating
reserve transfer and a $975,000 facility replacement reserve transfer. These one-time transfers were
recorded by the Authority in two line items: Nonoperating Revenues-Downtown Development
Authority and Capital Contributions-Transfer In of Net Assets from Grand Center and Van Andel
Arena. When combined, the two line items reflect the Downtown Development Authority's operating
and facility replacement reserve transfers to the Authority in the period ending June 30, 2001.

The $1,672,879 negative variance for the Nonoperating Revenues — Downtown Development Authority
line item is offset by the $1,753,431 positive variance for the Capital Contributions — Transfer In of Net
Assets from the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena. Although the Authority budgeted $3,000,000 for
a operating reserve transfer, the amount actually transferred was $3,000,090. The Authority budgeted
$975,000 for the facility replacement reserve transfer but actually received $1,055,462. Therefore, the
Authority received $80,552 more from the Downtown Development Authority than budgeted.

Investment Income

Investment income experienced a positive variance in the amount of $945,903. The Authority's
investment income budget included Grand Center and Van Andel Arena investment income; however,
it did not include $945,903 for earnings related to convention center construction project funds.



Contributions

There was a positive variance of $189,519 for contributions. During the period ending June 30, 2001,
the City and the Downtown Development Authority paid to the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena
$189,519 for incentive fees earned during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000. Due to the change in
responsibility for operations between the two fiscal periods, the revenues are considered to be
contributions from the City and the Downtown Development Authority. Since the contributions were
related to a previous fiscal year, the Authority did not budget for these contributions.

Miscellaneous

The Authority budgeted $329,265 for various expenses related to Grand Center and Van Andel Arena
operations. Due to the transition in operations, these expenses were not incurred. However, there were
unbudgeted revenues of $21,665 received by the Authority making the total variance for miscellaneous
nonoperating revenues a positive $350,930.

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital contributions experienced a positive variance of $42,786,750. This is explained by the
following individual variances:

Capital appropriations from State of Michigan

Since the State of Michigan's participation in the new convention center construction project is a grant,
revenue is recognized only as expenditures are incurred in conformity with the grant agreement. Based
on the convention center construction project budget, the Authority estimated it would receive $35
million from the State of Michigan during the period ending June 30, 2001; one installment in June
2000 and the second in June 2001. The Authority received $20 million from the State in June 2000 but
the second installment of $15 million was received in August 2001 after the close of the period. In
addition, the Authority is only able to recognize as revenue $16,908,170, which is the amount actually
expended for construction project related expenses. The budget did not account for these differences
leading to a negative revenue variance of $18,091,830.

Construction Expenditures

When the Authority's budget was prepared, the convention center construction project was still in early
development without firm timetables. The difference between the projected timetable and the actual
work schedule led to a positive variance in the amount of $19,092,175.

Transfer of capital assets from the City of Grand Rapids and from the County of Kent
The Authority did not budget for the transfer of Grand Center capital assets from the City and the
County. This produced a positive variance of $40,032,974.

Transfer In of Net Assets from the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena

A positive variance in the amount of $1,753,431 is offset by a negative variance under Nonoperating
Revenues — Downtown Development Authority. An explanation of both the positive and negative
variances is included in the paragraph above entitled, "Nonoperating Revenues — Downtown
Development Authority."

10



OVERALL FINANCIAL POSITION

Management believes the Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority is in good
condition both administratively and financially. During its first year of operation, the Authority's
Operations, Finance and Building Committees established policies and procedures, hired an
administrative manager, and supervised the ongoing construction of the new convention center facility.
Management believes the Statement of Net Assets shows a healthy balance in unrestricted net assets.
Operating revenues at the Grand Center and the Van Andel Arena exceeded operating expenses
indicating that promoters, event planners, and the general public continue to use and support these
facilities. The Authority also successfully renegotiated its management agreement with SMG, assuring
a continued level of quality for the current facilities and a smooth transition process through the
opening of the new facility.

In addition to the activities described above, the Authority began construction of the new De Vos Place
convention center in downtown Grand Rapids on the east bank of the Grand River. The project
includes the demolition of existing structures; the construction of infrastructure improvements,
including the relocation of utilities; the renovation and improvement of approximately 150,000 square
feet of existing space; the addition of approximately 850,000 square feet of new space, the construction
of an approximately 700 space below-grade parking facility; the improvement of the Riverfront
Promenade and Lyon Square, the acquisition and installation of furniture, fixtures and equipment; and
related and appurtenant improvements generally located south of Michigan Street, west of Monroe
Avenue, north of Lyon Street, and east of the Grand River.

Overall convention center project costs are currently estimated at $218.5 million. Support for the
project comes from a variety of funding sources as indicated below. The Authority anticipates that the
unnamed support will be raised from a combination of cost savings and/or additional funding from one
or more of the sources below or additional sources.

County of Kent hotel-motel tax revenue bonds,
bond proceeds and investment earnings net of underwriters'

discount and costs of issuance $87,107,678
Capital appropriations from the State of Michigan 65,000,000
Private donations pledged, on behalf of the project, by Grand Action,

a Michigan not-for-profit corporation 33,000,000
Federal government 7,282,971
Downtown Development Authority 5,000,000
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention / Arena Authority

from Van Andel Arena operations 4,000,000
Interest earnings 2,300,000
County of Kent 1,000,000
Estimated additional funding and/or cost savings 13.809.351

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION PROJECT SUPPORT $218,500,000

Although the Authority is responsible for the construction of the convention center, some costs
associated with the overall construction project are expected to be paid directly by the supporting
agency or organization. The Authority will not include these financial transactions in its financial
statements and is, therefore, not subject to the audit requirements associated with receipt of federal
funds and issuance of bonds.

11



On June 20, 2000, the Authority received $20 million as the first installment of the State's $65 million
commitment. In August 2001, the Authority received a second installment of $15 million. The
Authority currently anticipates that it will receive the remaining $30 million in State appropriations
prior to the end of fiscal year June 30, 2002.

The Authority is working with the City County Building Authority (the "CCBA") as it prepares to issue
revenue bonds. Debt service will be paid by the CCBA using County of Kent hotel-motel tax revenues.
As security for the bonds, the Authority transferred, effective November 19, 2001, ownership of $65
million in capital assets related to the Grand Center and the new convention center construction site.
Transferred assets include convention center construction in progress and existing buildings (Welsh
Auditorium, De Vos Hall and the Grand Hall) as well as all equipment, furniture, and fixtures within
those buildings. Responsibility for the operation of the Grand Center remains with the Authority.

One of the first structures to be demolished on the convention center building site was the City of
Grand Rapids' parking ramp adjacent to the Grand Center. Demolition of this ramp reduced the size of
several Grand Center meeting spaces. Due to this and future reductions in available space, it is
anticipated that utilization of the Grand Center will begin to diminish beginning in the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2002. Budgeted Grand Center revenues and expenses for fiscal year 2002 have been
adjusted in anticipation of this reduction. Staff are also working with current users to ensure their
ongoing satisfaction and to minimize potential losses in facility utilization prior to the opening of the
replacement convention center in 2004.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

From time to time, the Authority may publish forward-looking statements and comments relating to
possible or assumed future results for operations, construction, anticipated financial performance and
similar matters. These forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties. When the
Authority uses any of the words such as "believes," "expects,” "anticipates," "estimates" or similar
expressions, the Authority is making forward-looking statements. The Authority claims the protection
of safe harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995 for all of the Authority's forward-looking statements. The Authority believes that its forward-
looking statements are reasonable.

Readers should not place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements, which address issues
only as of the date made. Readers should understand that many factors, in addition to those discussed
elsewhere in this Annual Report and in the Authority's public documents to which it refers, could affect
the Authority's future results. This could cause those results to differ materially from those expressed
in the Authority's forward-looking statements.

The Authority undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or

circumstances after the date on which such statement is made to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated
events.

12



PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
333 Bridge Street, N.W.

Suite 505

Grand Rapids MI 49504-5356
Telephone (616) 458 7700
Facsimile (616) 454 6375

Report of Independent Accountants

To the Members of the Grand Rapids —
Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Grand Rapids, Michigan:

In our opinion, the accompanying statement of net assets and the related statement of revenue, expenses
and changes in net assets and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "Authority") as of June 30, 2001,
and the results of its operations from its inception of June 20, 2000 through June 30, 2001 and the
results of its cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Authority's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As described in Note 2, the Authority adopted the provisions of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management's
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, GASB Statement No. 36, Recipient
Reporting for Certain Shared Nonexchange Revenues, GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus,
and GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures, as of June 20, 2000.

WWMW

November 30, 2001

13



Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authdrity

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2001

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables, net
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Land
Buildings and structures
Equipment
Furniture
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Advance ticket sales
Advance deposits
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

14

$ 12,017,142
592,477
1,248,949

123,487

13,982,055

22,180,088
17,409,233
412,147
59,288
16,911,332

(813,883)
56,158,205
$ 70,140,260

§ 1,742,689
883,851
1,079,206
202,951

3,533,336
$ 7,442,033

$ 56,158,205

6540022
$62,68227



Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
For the Period June 20, 2000 through June 30, 2001

Operating revenues, facilities revenues

Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Utilities
Supplies and expenses
Contractual services
Depreciation
Repairs and maintenance
Professional services
Contract rights amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating income
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Downtown Development Authority
Investment income
Contributions
Miscellaneous
Net nonoperating revenues before capital contributions
Capital contributions:
Capital appropriations from the State of Michigan
Transfer of capital assets from the City of Grand Rapids and County of Kent
Transfer in of net assets from the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena
Total capital contributions
Net nonoperating revenue
Increase in net assets

Net assets, beginning of the period

Net assets, end of the period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

15

$ 6,687,453

1,770,995
1,208,398
1,133,963
871,054
813,883
260,721
182,435

23,560
6,265,009

422,444

2,302,121
1,067,903
189,519

21,665
3,581,208

16,908,170
40,032,974

1,753,431
58,694,575
62,275,783

62,698,227

$62,698227



Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Period June 20, 2000 through June 30, 2001

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from facility operations
Payments to SMG employees
Payments to suppliers and contractors

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Downtown Development Authority
Contributions
Other receipts

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Capital appropriations from the State of Michigan
Capital assets constructed
Transfer in of cash from the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities, proceeds from investment maturities,
net of purchase

Net increase in cash
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents - end of the period

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Contract rights amortization
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Advance ticket sales
Advance deposits
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Non-cash transactions:
Capital assets transferred in from the City of Grand Rapids and County of Kent

Transfer in of net assets from the Grand Center and Van Andel Arena

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

16

$ 6,790,383
(1,770,995)

(2,176,685)
2,342,703

2,302,121
189,519

21,665

2,513,305

20,000,000
(16,939,114)

3,124,733

6,185,619

475,515

12,017,142

$ 12017142

$ 422,444

813,883
23,560

56,053
(30,787)
1,158,628
352,045
78,285
(97,311)
65,903

———————r——s

$ 2,842,703

$ 40,032,974

$ 1,371,392



Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets —

Budget and Actual

For the Period June 20, 2000 through June 30, 2001

Operating revenues, facilities revenue

Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Utilities
Supplies and expenses
Contractual services
Depreciation
Repairs and maintenance
Professional services
Contract rights amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Downtown Development Authority
Investment income
Contributions
Miscellaneous

Net nonoperating revenues before
capital contributions

Capital contributions :
Capital appropriations from State of Michigan
Construction expenditures (1)
Transfers of capital assets from the City
of Grand Rapids
Transfer in of net assets from Grand Center
and Van Andel Arena

Total capital contributions
Net nonoperating revenue

Increase in net assets
Add construction expenditures (1)

Net assets, beginning of the period

Net assets, end of the period

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 6,503,253 $ 6,687,453 § 184,200
1,791,396 1,770,995 20,401
1,134,000 1,208,398 (74,398)
1,226,666 1,133,963 92,703
984,756 871,054 113,702
- 813,883 (813,883)
234,500 260,721 (26,221)
103,415 182,435 (79,020)
23,558 23,560 (2)
5,498,291 6,265,009 (766,718)
1,004,962 422,444 (582,518)
3,975,000 2,302,121 (1,672,879)
122,000 1,067,903 945,903
- 189,519 189,519
(329,265) 21,665 350,930
3,767,735 3,581,208 (186,527)
35,000,000 16,908,170 (18,091,830)
(36,000,000) (16,907,825) 19,092,175
- 40,032,974 40,032,974
- 1,753,431 1,753,431
(1,000,000) 41,786,750 42,786,750
2,767,735 45,367,958 42,600,223
3,772,697 45,790,402 42,017,705
36,000,000 16,907,825 (19,092,175)
39,772,697 62,698,227 22,925,530
$39,772,697 $62,698,227 $ 22,925,530

(1) The budget and actual presentation includes construction expenses which are generally
capitalized under generally accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2001

1.

Organization and Purpose

The Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "Authority") was created by
the City of Grand Rapids (the "City") and the County of Kent (the "County"), Michigan under the
provisions of Act 203 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1999 effective June 20, 2000. The
Authority was established for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, improving, enlarging,
renewing, replacing, repairing, financing, refinancing, equipping and operating convention
facilities (including all or part of, or any combination of, a convention hall, auditorium, arena,
meeting rooms, exhibition area and related adjacent public areas together with appurtenant
property including parking lots and structures) and real property on which they are located.

The Authority includes the operations of the Grand Center which provides space for conventions,
concerts, meetings and other performances. Prior to June 30, 2000 the Grand Center was operated
by the City. On July 1, 2000, operations of the Grand Center were transferred from the City to the
Authority.

In addition, on July 1, 2000, the City and the County transferred capital assets to the Authority.
The capital assets were recorded by the Authority in accordance with their net book value per the
City's and the County's records at the time of the transfer. Capital assets transferred in totaled
$40,032,974 and will continue to be depreciated by the Authority at their remaining useful life as
set by the City.

The Authority also includes the operations of the Van Andel Arena (the "Arena") which provides
space for conventions, concerts, sporting events, meetings and other performances. Prior to
June 30, 2000, the Arena was operated by the Downtown Development Authority (the "DDA") of
the City. On July 1, 2000, operations of the Arena were transferred to the Authority. The DDA
maintains ownership of the capital assets until the related bonds are retired in 2024. At that time,
ownership of these capital assets will be transferred to the Authority.

The Authority has entered an agreement with SMG to manage the operations of the Grand Center
and the Arena through June 30, 2006.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting entity

The Authority is considered to be a stand-alone government entity in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and Government Accounting Standards Board ("GASB")
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting

The Authority uses the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at
the time liabilities are incurred.

18



Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2001

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in all material respects in accordance with
accounting principles outlined by the GASB. The Authority adopted the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 34 ("GASB 34"), Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and
Analysis for State and Local Governments, GASB Statement No. 36, Recipient Reporting for
Certain Shared Nonexchange Revenues, GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements —
and Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus, and
GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures, as of June 20, 2000.

As a result of this adoption, the required presentation of the Statement of Net Assets, Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets and the Statement of Cash Flows have been
made. GASB 34 establishes standards for external financial reporting for state and local
governments and requires that financial statements be presented on a consolidated basis to focus
on the Authority as a whole, with resources classified for accounting and reporting purposes into
net assets categories according to externally imposed restrictions.

The two required net assets categories used by the Authority are as follows:

= Invested in capital assets — Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, acquired,
constructed or improved. '

=  Unrestricted — Net assets that are not subject to externally imposed stipulations.
Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of the
Authority's Board of Directors or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements
with outside parties.

Budget

The Uniform Budgeting Act (Public Act 621 of 1978) of the State of Michigan requires that
certain governmental units annually adopt balanced budgets on the accrual basis of accounting.
The budget for the Authority is an annual operating budget.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes all checking and savings accounts of the Authority and excludes any amounts held
for investment. Cash equivalents includes all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three
months or less from the date of purchase. Cash and cash equivalents are recorded at fair market
value.

19



Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2001

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Capital assets

Tangible assets having a useful life in excess of one year, with cost in excess of $10,000, are
capitalized. Capital assets are generally valued at acquisition cost or at fair value at the date of
donation. When assets are sold or retired, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss is recorded as a nonoperating item.

Depreciation is charged as an expense against operations. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Years
Land improvements 20
Buildings, structures and improvements 1-34
Office furniture and equipment 3-10

Revenues

The Authority records facilities revenue upon completion of the event at the Grand Center or
Arena. Accordingly, amounts received for advance ticket sales or deposits are recorded as
deferred revenue until that time. Costs incurred prior to an event are recorded as prepaid
expenses and charged to expense upon completion of the event.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Deposits

At year-end, the carrying amounts of the Authority's deposits were $10,628,033 and the bank
balances were $10,647,426. Of the bank balances, $300,000 was covered by federal deposit
insurance. The State of Michigan requires deposits to be maintained in depositories within the
State of Michigan and does not allow collateralization. Accordingly, the remaining deposits are
uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments

The policy of the Authority limits investments to bonds and other obligations of the U.S.
Government, or an agency or instrumentality thereof, certain Repurchase Agreements with a
financial institution guaranteed with U.S. Government Obligations, bankers acceptances of U.S.
banks, certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts or depository receipts of a
financial institution and Commercial Paper rated within the two highest classifications established
by not less than two standard rating services at the time of purchase. State statutes also require
that Certificates of Deposit be maintained in financial institutions with offices in the State of
Michigan.

20



Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2001

3.

Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)

The investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the
Authority at year-end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which
the securities are held by the Authority or its agent in the Authority's name. Category 2 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counter party's
trust department (if a bank) or agent in the Authority's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which securities are held by the counter party in the Authority's
name or by the counter party's trust department (if a bank) or agent but not in the Authority's
name. The Authority's investments are categorized as Category 3 as of June 30, 2001.

4. Receivables
Receivables at June 30, 2001, were as follows:
Facility customers $ 1,099,936
Events 133,637
Ancillary revenues 84,597
Interest 16,908
Allowance (86,129)
$ 1,248,949
5. Capital Assets

The following table summarizes, by major class of asset, the capital asset activity for the year
ended June 30, 2001:

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Disposals Balance
Land $ - $22,180,088 § - $22,180,088
Buildings and structures - 17,409,233 - 17,409,233
Equipment - 412,147 - 412,147
Furniture - 59,288 - 59,288
Construction in process - 16,911,332 - 16,911,332
Total cost of capital assets - 56,972,088 - 56,972,088

Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and structures - 746,953 - 746,953
Equipment - 55,872 - 55,872
Furniture - 11,058 - 11,058
Total accumulated depreciation - 813,883 - 813,883
Total capital assets, net $ - $56,158,205 § - $56,158,205

21



Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2001

6.

10.

Payable

Payables at June 30, 2001, were as follows:

Construction $ 1,009,948
Facility customers 639,838
Vendors 90,060
Other 2,843

$ L1268

Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses at June 30, 2001, were as follows:

Professional services $ 759,020
Salaries and benefits 124,831
$ 883,851

Management Fee

The Authority pays SMG an annual base management fee and an incentive fee based on the
results of operations of the Grand Center and the Arena. For the year ended June 30, 2001, total
management and incentive fees, earned by SMG were approximately $591,000.

Contingencies
The Authority is exposed to a number of asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in
the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will

not have a material effect on the financial position of the Authority.

Subsequent Event

" Effective November 19, 2001, title to all of the capital assets of the Authority was transferred to

the City County Building Authority (the "CCBA"). These assets will collateralize the $84 million
in revenue bonds issued by the CCBA on December 13, 2001. The CCBA leases facilities to the
governmental units under contracts capitalized as direct financing leases. The lease payments are
pledged solely for payment of the maturing bonds and interest. When the bonds issued by the
CCBA have been retired, title to the facilities will be conveyed to the Authority. The Authority
retains responsibility for the operations of the Grand Center and the Van Andel Arena.

22



Item V1.a.v.

Van Andel Arena /

@ Grand Center

Privale Rasegracat fer Prols fackitties

Memorandum

To: Richard MacKeigan
From: Chris Mag:huta
C: Jim Watt

Date:— Wednesday, March-20,,2002

Re: Rampage Field System

Attached to this memo is the summary for the Rampage field system based on expenses that the
_Arena incurred, as well as, the Rampage directly.. As you are well aware, they are _entitled to receive
upwards to $130,000 over the course of three years (the season they are about to begin being the final
-of the three years) for the purchase of the field system. In addition, they are entitled to receive $5,000
for the goalpost system, per the terms of the contract. For easy reference, | have enclosed the portion
of the Rampage contract that deals with this particular issue directly.

I have also included a proposed payment schedule that | believe best represents the intentions of the
contcact. 1.am propaosing that the CAA directly pays the Arena (SMG) $43,333.33 Toreachof thethree
years. SMG would then deduct $6,151.22 for each year's payment to the Rampage as way of

_collecting its share of the overall expense of the-project- - Thefirst- year's-payment includes-an-additional
$5,000 as way of reimbursing the Rampage for the goalpost system expense. Having said all that, this
April marks the beginning of the fifth season for the Rampage and technically, per the terms_of the
contract, they should be receiving their final of three payments. | recommend that we propose to the
CAA that they make a full $135,000-payment_so fhat the_fems of 1he contract willbe metin a timely
fashion.

In addition, if the-above-scenario-holds true; the- Rampage will- have incurred $2,103.03 in-expenses for
the field system purchase that they will receive no reimbursement for. It is my recommendation that the
Arena-share in-some of this expense- When-the-original-budget was-put together; the-totat-expense
was projected to be less than $135,000. It is my feeling that if it were known when the contract was
being-negotiated that the total-price-would-be- $137,000~ that the-original-contract would- have reflected
that number. Additionally, all assets are Arena property.

I hope that this clears things up: As-always, please let me-know-if you-have any-questions;er-need any
additional information.




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Field System Expenses

Building Expenses
Dasher Board Materials 4,785.54
Dasher Board Labor 2,288.00
Field System Tools 2,111.94
Scoreboard Materials/Software 2,952.00
Electrical Supplies 5,516.16
Motor Rental 800.00
Total Building Expenses 18,453.64

Team Expenses

Turf 91,213.00
Turf Painting (Supplies & Labor) 4,850.54
Dasher Board Pads 13,753.93
Goalposts 5,000.00
Goalposts - Repainting 2,700.00
Rebound Nets 1,131.92
118,649.39
Total Field System Expenses 137,103.03
Payment Summary to Rampage
Payment Arena Rampage

Year1  48,333.33 6,151.21 42,182.12
Year2  43,333.33 6,151.21 37,182.12
Year3  43,333.34 6,151.22 37,182.12

135,000.00 18,453.64 116,546.36



(e) Other Football-Related Events. Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to
involve Tenant in football-related events other than Home Games when it is in
Landlord’s best interests.

® Practice Sessions. Tenant shall have the right to use the Leased Premises
for the Football ‘Team’s practice sessions at times to be mutually agreed upon by
Landlord and Tenant, subject to the availability of the Arena. In addition, Landlord
agrees to make reasonable efforts to have the Arena available for use by visiting teams
the night before each Home Game. Landlord agrees that the Football Team’s field
configuration shall be the standard set-up in the Arena following the Griffins’ season, and
Landlord agrees to set-up and tear down other events during the Season such that the
Football Team may use the Arena for its practice sessions as often as possible; provided,
however, that Landlord shall not be required to incur unreasonable additional costs (i.e.,
overtime pay) to prepare the Arena for the Football Team’s practice sessions. Tenant
shall pay Landlord all reasonable, actual, out-of-pocket costs incurred by Landlord by
reason of practice sessions, including visiting team practice sessions.

(8)  Football Facilities. ILandlord shall provide at least ten thousand eight
hundred (10,800) spectator seats (or any larger amount resulting from an expansion of the
Arena) for Home Games in the Arena. In addition, Landlord shall provide the playing
field, dasherboards and high density foam padding, goal posts and nets (and equipment
required to suspend them from the ceiling of the Arena), required clocks and scoreboards,
and other equipment and facilities necessary to conduct professional football games that
meet AFL standards, as such standards exist from time to time. Landlord agrees to bear
the cost and expense for the acquisition, repair, and maintenance of all such football
equipment and facilities; provided, however, that Tenant shall provide funds to Landlord
to finance the purchase and transportation of a new AFL field system (including playing
field, nets, and rubber barriers) and the purchase, transportation, repair, and repainting of
a used set of AFL goal posts (Landlord and Tenant agree that Landlord shall purchase the
goals posts from Tenant for Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000)), provided that Tenant shall
involve Landlord in the purchase and repair process. Landlord shall reimburse Tenant for
the total amounts advanced to Landlord by Tenant in connection with the field system in
three (3) equal annual installments by April 1 of the third, fourth, and fifth years of the
Initial Term; provided however, that Landlord’s total investment in the AFL field system
shall not exceed One Hundred and Thirty Thousand Dollars ($130,000); and provided
further, that Landlord’s annual reimbursement obligation shall be subject to the Lease
remaining in effect during the relevant year and the Football Team playing at least seven
(7) Home Games during each such year.

(h)  Office Space. As of the Execution Date, there is no office space available
in the Arena for Tenant. If any space currently used by or committed to other tenants of
the Arena or any other space becomes available at the Arena for use by Tenant as office
space, Tenant shall be entitled to use up to 1,600 square feet of space at the Arena on a
rent-free basis during the Term. If space becomes available to Tenant and Tenant opts to
use such space, Tenant shall accept such space “as is,” and all build-out shall be at
Tenant’s cost and shall be performed and completed in compliance with applicable



. Erhardt Item VLb.

CONSTRUCTION

CONSTRUCTION GROUP

FINANCIAL
Summ

Erhardt/Hunt has committed $85,297,170 or 58% of the antiéipated direct cos;ts
$146,272,292. With anticipated indirect costs of $23,170,928, the project continues to
be within the total construction budget of $169,500,000.

Sitework

Erhardt/Hunt has committed $196,396 or 6% of the budget for‘ Sitework. With
additional anticipated costs of $3,366,185, the Sitework is currently budgeted at
$3,562,581.

DeVos Hall Lobby Addition

Erhardt/Hunt has committed $4,463,600 or 97% of the budget for the Lobby Addition.
With additional anticipated costs of $234,207, the DeVos Hall Lobby Addition is
currently over budget by $76,918.

The Budget over-runs are due to additional rubbing of concrete stair towers, increase
costs in installing the granite base, drywall reveal crack repairs, and Bulletin #10.

‘DeVos Hall Renovation
Erhaxdf/ Hunt has committed $238,529 or 13% of the budget for the DeVos Hall

Renovation. With additional anticipated costs of $1,534,081, the DeVos Hall
Renovation is currently budgeted at $1,772,610.

Grand Gallery and Exhibit Halls

Erhardt/Hunt has committed $80,091,858 or 91% of the budget for the Grand Gallery
and Exhibit Halls. With additional anticipated costs of $7,81 3,670, the Grand Gallery
and Exhibit Halls are over budget by $329,754.

The Budget over-runs are due to the addition of a roofing inspector and Bulletin #1. |

Erhardt/Hunt, A Joint Venture

Erhardt Construction Hunt Construction Group
6060 East Fulton / P.O. Box 208 2450 South Tibbs Avenue
Ada, MI 49301 Indianapolis, IN' 46241

616.676.1222 317.227.7800




Erhardt

CONSTRUCTION

Grand Center Renovation

Erhardt/Hunt has committed $229,745 or 2% of the budget for the Grand Center
Renovation. With additional anticipated costs of $10,657,053, the Grand Center
Renovation is budgeted at $10,886,798.

Welsh Auditorium

Erhardt/Hunt has committed $77,042 or less than 1% of the budget for the Welsh
Auditorium. With additional anticipated costs of $22,603,789, the Welsh Auditorium is
currently budgeted at $22,680,831.

Allowances

The Owner’s Allowance for the Grand Gallery and the Exhibit Halls is $2,136,504.

Erhardt/Hunt, A Joint Venture

Erhardt Construction * Hunt Construction Group
6060 East Fulton / P.O. Box 208 2450 South Tibbs Avenue
Ada, MI 49301 Indianapolis, IN 46241

616.676.1222 317.227.7800



2IMUBA JUIOT VY JUNH 1pIeys3

0zZZerr 69l $ J1VAILSTI NOILONY1SNOD V101

PIS'PLL'D 834 WO

.v_&.wmo.h—. Sjiulld pue aouesnsu| .mco_zvcoo |eJauao)

10'9vL$ 8G'ShL$ 18°001% 60°8Y1$ G¥'08% 02'c€les 459/$

987100} 182161 8£0'cEl 000°€€9 881'9¢ A A (4s9) ebejoo4 asenbg ssoio

zez'zizovL | sis'cielz | evv'elp'El | S92'8€L'€6 | 988°90L°C 212'698'Y Zy'see'y [ejoL

{000°680'2) (862°'%9€) (G69°L11) (698'28%'L)  |(g58'9L) (c8¥'c9) (g62’0%) sypal) ‘d’1'0 0 pajedionuy

££9'¥90°L FA LR 1N ove'Pr9 Z09'vES'Yy LEL'LOL 068'¥€C 621'€02 Aouabunuo)

000°00%'2 000°000'V 000'000'2 000°059 000052 - 000'00S uone|essy

$05'98€'2 000°062 $05°'9€1L°C S3oUEMO|IY

- - - 607 00d

6L'zLL | ssi'oosiel | Leg'os9'zz | 862°988'0L | 825'S06'28 | 019'2LL'L 208'269't 186'296'€ [eyoigns
€26'CL1'61 £06°€29'€ 2.0'887°L viLzseTL [ 2ilLe SYZ'LLS L1215 [eooalg (91 UOISINIG
(K74 0EL'¥51'62 861°1SE'E 6.8'vvL'y pee'zso'olL | 69t'i8¢€ 098819 - [ESIUBYDON G UOISIAIQ
12T 900'2.2'2 v0LL Sv.'622 695'259'L 059'20¢ - - swa)shg Buliksauod :p| UOISIAIQ
- - - - - - - - uononJsuo)d _m_omaw ‘€1 uoIsiAig
900 142°1S eTANC] 000'S GZE'6€ - 128'9 - sbuysiuing :Z) uoising
€50 €16°0€S - 00v £15'0€S - - - swdinb3 :}| uosiag
S5°C 890'¥5S' 012 Lb¥ 896°'90¢ 0.8's0¥'L 6EL'EZ 180°LLE - sepeoads 01 uoIsiAg
S6°01 169°026°0L yiE'sv9'C £20'0¥E"L 00v'Z¥0'9 902'sSe 889'/85 - saysiuld 60 uolsing
1E'S £2¥'02€'S Gee'gLY'L 08€'26¢ 9e2°'191'E 9zL'6g 9¥8'81¢ - SMOPUIM pue S100Q 80 UOISIAIQ
198 G1.'689'8 £18'260'2 188°'09¢ 860'€50'9 1451 £A SzZy'68l - UORO8)0Id AINISION g [BWIBY] 20 UOISIAIQ
09'L $98'86G'L 122'61S €18'211 000°'¥98 16G°L 689'06 - sojjsejd pue SPOOM 190 UOISIAIQ
6v°22 $62'825'22 00S°'6¥E'V 006'902 688'299'2L | G80'Sl 026'88¢2 - S[eloW G0 uoIsiAlg
z6E 0££°'226°C ozy'LLL 16e'8ee 1£6°068'C 61229 £06'809 Kuosep 40 uoisINg
vzl 880°G8¥'Z1 909'28¢'L 085°02¢2 066'SPE'0L - Zv6'LES 8j210u0D €0 UOISIAIQ
8291 62L'21LE'9L $16'085' 08.'GY6 £01°€86'8 Lze'sve 18€'205 $9€'240'C MIOMIYIS  1Z0 UoISIAIg

uoneAoudYy o], 4 >Qno|_
489/$ fejoL ysiom Joua) puels) |  sjieH MaN IieH soAad HIoMaYS
200z Atenagag

AYVIAINNS FLVINILST LNTFANNDO0A NOILONYLSNOD

NOILVAONIY ANV NOISNVdX3
YIINIO NOILNIANOD SAldVi ANVHO




co/s/e

armua Juiof v qunp /3preysy Aq paredaig

G0}
6 "AIQ U] dn~oeg ajuels
Z6L°'}L G# una|ing ajuelo
6 ‘Al U| aueIo |feisuy
€10'L Xe] sajes Jooluelo
G/8'9l Joouern €5¥60
zeL'ey au0JS JaNaA [lelsu] 3SS
Ge9'LL €€9'LL1 aUO]S YA l[eIsul 60200
162°CL Xe| So[es auojg JopaA
. Buusau|bug auoig JI8N8A
9/1'12C aUO)S JONdA Zs¥60
AiuoseN yHA 25160
(*1¢] 4 unsjing mnm._mm.:.._m
162°€9 aqelbbing LG¥60
ZL9'LL 615929 Kuosei Ha 15160
118'S JauwioD MN e PIoA Iiid
80¥'9 (uewjppaua) PIoA lild LEO# OOd
¥eL'6 uonepuno4 |lepy Aelodwa | 1pseysly 20100
ajaIouc) YHA 2v.160
005’ £02'9 syjemapig Arelodway
819'02 X9 YOI £¥¥60
G/£'6€ uoyoalg [98)S ddY Zyv60
0002 Vi unejing 18R puel9
000°'0%2 1oAY puelo L¥¥60
000G} 9.6l SjleM Jemo JielS gny
LLL'SLL suonepuno4 8}a1ouod ipieyi 20,00
(g29'21) $92's2s 8ja10u0d HA Ly.60
Jomels ¥HA 11160
192°95 yosid 1260
00Z'6€€ ‘00 3 |9vyeg L1¥60
LSY'6€ ewayAg 91¥60
696°LL owsQ 8Alo8|eS Jpieyls 10200
SO UM papnjou Aelodwsa] V) eseyd 6510
(696°L1) 8Ly'S6Y }IO0MONS HA 9160
1ebpng S)s0) papiemy jabpng apo)
Bulujeway pejedionuy sjoesju0) pasiAdy uondussaqg 3s0)

NOILIAQV A990T TIVH SOAdd




axmaua 110 v Yuny/ipreysy Aq paredarg

20/5/e Gz
0S¥'S9 UBWIOW V'S 20560
602'L}) "00 JooQ peayssaQ 10560
002 spoddng jlep ulepn asudiajug sse|o
¥98'612 sasudisjuz sse|9 00560
606 £# uns|ing piey.3
£65'8 L0¥'LL si00Q Jleisu| pieys3 $0.00
(vel) rARN: 18 SMOPUIM '8 s100d HA 00860
) uoiosiold W31l YHa 28160
00Z G# unayng buyooy TR
0ce £# unajing buyooy 13r
09/'LS Buyooy 1er 28160
soL'e sjaued ss929Y 880# OOd WOV
0¥S'8Z} S|EJOIN B SSEID |BINJOBYIIY 18¥60
(s01L'2) 0ze'l8l uonodjoid W31 HA 18160
000'S 88962 Anuadied ybnoy
Anuadied YHQ 2.160
116'2 6# unajing PoOoM As]ieA pueso
6¥0'L G# uns|ing poo AsjleA puelo
00Z'62 poo A8jleA puelD L.¥60
G802 6# uns|ing Jpiey.3
96/ G# unsjing ipseysa
000'0Z SHOMIIIAl lelsu] Ipteys £0.00
(rs9‘el) S00°LL Anuadied Ha 12160
[98)S ¥HA 29160
066'C 6# une|ing Jaumno)
¥SY'L spoddng [JEA UlBHIND JBLININ0YD
ovL'Ly YeiD uol| JBUNIN0Y 29¥60
PIOA sjaued jii4-u| J1elS GL0# O0d
£€0'C 6# une|ing 16u3 @ A|ddng [9alS
€0e'Le 16u3 » Alddng 89S 19¥60
(822'2) Zyo'18e 1991S HA 19260
yebpng $)S09) papiemy jabpng apo)
Bujureway pajedionuy sjoesjuo) posiAay uonduasag 1S09)

NOILIAQV Ad90T TIVH SOATd




armua utof v Yuny] /preyry Aq paredarg

c0/s/e Gjog

619 00S°L sBuiysiuand HQ 10660
- - yuswdinb3 HA 08860

008 sJaysinbugx3 a4
180°€E ubiseqg qoser 65560

008 uoneso] pieog Japeay "dwe] 680# OOd
000'28€ . - souoneq £6560
sofjjeoads YHA 95860
G98°‘L 9v6°‘C.LE sapjerdeds HA 65860
saysiuld ¥HA 9¢860

00S°ct (uewy1pua)y) daud Joojd

000°G swniwald |0 ealy Aeg
G96°L0} sioueju| ealy Aeg 82560

009 Ol# unajing 8|0 aAeq

W”A ued |991s Adoue) 80D aAeQ

ooy silepm "dwa | Juied 9|00 sAed

0S¢ i ulieling 8j0D 8AeQ

0es’L €# unsfing 9|00 aAeQd
00¥'9L si0jel008Q 9|00 aAeQ 12560

08v'C €66'v1 uonejjejsy| ajuels auQ jadied

62c'y G# unajing uosuyor Aq auQ jedied
0S6°€Ll uosuyor Aq auQ 1adied 92560

002’8 sjeaAay/sjuior [0u0) 060# OOd

008 OL# uisjing ewasiy

0ELe Buiwelq dn-xoeg sjiueiS) ewasiy

000°4 6# una|ng BWasKy
L6y'eee ewasyy G2S60
(186've) 101°2SS saysiuld Ha 62860
SMOPUIA pue si1oog ¥yHA 10860

yes 6# unsjing UBULION V'S

00. €# ung|ing UBUWLION "V'S
yobpng $)S09 papiemy jobpng apo9
Bujureway pajedionuy SJoRIUO) pasiaay uonduosag 3S09)

NOILIAQV A9907T1 TIVH SOAdA




arauap 1utof v quny/apreysy :Aq paredang

c0/s/e Gioy
891’y suonIpuoy [esausy 108foid Yoas|3
G6S'vl OPpISIaAlY - Wlely all4
SSL'0L -d"1 "YoIW - uoidal0id Buuybi
¥89'61 NODSY - wesAs punog
996'0eY yd9329(7
|eauosig YHA 2,660
(sv9°2) 009°'€9S jea1309]3 HA 12660
008'c s abeuio)g 0} ue4 jsneyx3y ppy
9€6 1oNQg Wwooy Jud) P uebiyaIn 16906
(00s'9) }IOM [eOlUBYOS E# Unaling 15960
690201 swooy ‘BN @ lem "dwa ueb3 15960
000°S sjonuo) ‘dwa Asesodws ] 16960
000'LY uosuyor - sjosuo) ainjessdwa] 15960
005'6 ISOMPI - @duejeg pue jsa), 1G960
Gle2¢ 1S3| - uoejnsuy| 16960
1e9'cel 1ebie] - [e}JoN J93US 1G960
LS¥'v02 "0D ueb3 Apuy - [edlueydoa 15960
jedlueyosiN IHA G9660
- zsz'els jediueyaoiN HA £5660
1162 aur a4 Jieday 16960
G1Z'L€ llEAA UBA - UOij08)01d 3l 16960
uolo9j0ld alid ¥HA Y9660
- rATAlN 4 uond3joid ail4 HA 26660
96£°0¢ wolsAs 1o moug 16960
096't¥ "00 ueb3 Apuy 16960
Buiquinid YHA £9660
- 95£'s9 Buiquinid HA 16660
- slojeAs)g
- - swiasAg Buifeauod HA LP660
1289 UBWION 'V'S
yobpng $)S09) papiemy jobpng 2po)
Bujureway pajedionuy sjoesjuo) pasIAay uonduoasaq 3509

NOILLIAQV AddOT TIVH SOAFd




co/s/e

asmus 1utof v quny /preysy :Aq paredarg

Gijog
- - 607 00d
(8L692) L0Z'¥eT 009°cot'y 688029V S)S09 19341g UOKHONIISUOD [ejOL
000'2 uoneso] pieog Japeay "dwal 680# O0d
002'¥ 3HOA [BOU1081T O L# unaling
002 YIOA [B2M108(T 6# uneling
819'c YHOA [BOU}O8[T g# uleling
190'¥L SO [B01108[T Z# unajing
8cL's SHOM [BOM}08[T G# una|ing
022's MJOM [BO109|T ¢# unl|ing
062'L¥ swooy Byw/iemM dwa] yos3odig
19bpng $)S09) papiemy yabpng ?9poH
Bujuieway pajedionuy sjoeljuo?) posiAnay uondiasag }so0)

NOILLIGQV A9907T1 TIVH SOAHd




co/S/e

a1quap wwof v “uny /ipreysy :4q paredaig

9J01

000°'SLL IleH 3qIyx3 spelo auld

000°0} AemAa)| %0aQ aleM Z0L# 00d

96¢ SHUIS J00j4 je Jeqay L60# OOd

yrl'le Ais|le9 pueig apelg) auld £80# OOd

£88'C abeianQ siald ssni] xog z80# O0d

rA7A JielS MS jooudisieM L80# OOd

0zv'et Siald je siaAeg wio4 080# OOd

209 sebueyy s8jaiouo) €L0# 0Od

00S‘L . uoneodojay 3|id-IutN 6504 OOd

(o09'cel) sje\ Jeq paploM ¢y0# OOd

000°0S €# ula|ing uewjji1 AuUsSH

+00°¢ 8]8J0U0D paulRUT JIyY UBWI|LL AUSY

000'sel Ci# une|ing ueW|ji L AUSH

€¢C'lS L# uys|ing uewiLAuSy
G9.'0ge'8 uew|iLAusy 9¢ev60
bLS‘LLL 195°L2S 0L 9jaJouod H3 £v.60
8v.'ce 08 uonijows g aAldvleg Jpieyl3 0280

000°'GL +19UI0D S,pJEMOH, JB owd(Q Yosiid

0000l A42UI0D) S,pIEMOH,,

266°'0L Sjulod Ino1o uopoedwod 0L0# OJd

000'sz S8l |lep € “ling 03SI3AIQ

\ ZANA4 suononysqO Bunesys g# "ling 09s19AIQ

00¥'26 sanN SUS 3¢ aseud

0562 yydaQ uossied 61-1 9¥0# 00d

000'vL sjulod 1nol9 L# uns|ing ¢20# O0d

90¢'G. 8oUBMO[[Y IN019) uopoedwo)

9oUBMOJY "qnS YliM papnjou] suonINISqO UoSsieD 0E0# 00d

000'002 30UBMO||Y SUONONNSJO UOSSIeD)

000°'sZ 90UBMO||\ JNOIS) BjId-IUIN

000'002 SOUBMO|[Y UONBARDIXT JBAQD
L8E'YY9'S suojepuno asep €260
6.E'GV6'} 09sJaAIg rAA LY
096959 yosiid 1260
96.°'0L 668°€66'8 JHoma)s HI 12160
jebpng s)S09) papiemy jobpng apo)
Butureway pajedidnuy S}oRIUOYD pasinay uonduosaq 3s09

STIVH LIGITHXH AHN




co/s/e

armquap utof v Yunyy/apreysy Aq paredaig

g9jo¢
005°261 S9OUBMO|lY
000°z8 uonoaig ssniy o) Buoesg
000°05} s|lep passpeg
000°L Jojejedsd je |981S ¥.0# OOd
9.6'6¢ Z# une|ing sadIMILS |991S
122054 L# ulja(Ing S92IAISS [991S
000°0L¥'VL S3VIAISS [99]1S €9t60
(ozs‘zog) 69€'S9€'L} 1993S H3 £9.60
000'0S ’ dn~yoeg aseg ajueld
000'0LY auo)sawi |jesu| 080
ZgL'o0L6'} (Aauose uukT) sjuelo @ o0|g HoUg
266'2e Xe] So[eg auolS JANIdA
292'Sl Buusauibug Ja)joA
asv'LL G80'L.E aU0)S JSUBA ¢S¥60
- L£6°058°‘C Aiuosei§ H3 £6.60
08¢£°G8 (uoD-ssang) ysesaid
0o9zel 100} |[eH 1qIyx3 [eas pue ues|d
000'¥21 ge|s |aAe Bupped |eag pue ues|)
62C'v uone|nsu| uojepuno4
898'€T saje|d aseg Inoo
058°€0l XSN-UYOIW
£6€'081L uonoaIs [98)S JY
G09°L€ ¥6€'81 Buioe.g [leM IpIeysa L£30
ovL'6y s|iem jedeled 9£80
8v¢'LS1 2aouBMO||Y Sped juswdinb3 G£80
€0S°LL joAa1 Bupjled je sqnd $£80
82.'96 JusWaseouU] uwnjo) ££80
192'1S silid-u| JielS ued [B1oW €80
106'99 siie)s 82e|d-uj-ise) LEGO
085195 sy09( |BISN-UO-ST.IS 080
006°2L [99)S @0y Joj BuisioH
0S.'ey uonjdal3l [98)S 9dY cyy60
papn|ouj JoN JauapJleH 1004 ayeys Ag
1ebpng $)S0) papliemy jobpng apo)
Bujureway pajedionuy sjoeauo) pesiAey uonduossag 3s09

STIVH LT9IHXd AHN




20/S/e

armus A Jutof v 9unyy/apreyry Aq paredarg

gjo¢g
G90'2T) (Buyipuey payddy) siooq Buyiod
zLL'ele (4oog peayIanQ) si00Q i [EOHAA
002'6 sl00Qg POOM llesy| 0880
008'G9 (oM puai L) [elisle J00Q POOM
00228 [e}ON MOJ|OH ||eIsu] 0880
869 L# uno|ing UBUWIOW VS
0G.'/S1 (uewop VS) sieuaiei |elsN MOjioH
(192'1) 616'65L'€ SMOpPUIM pue s100Q H3|  S0860
000°S L# uijefing
000°0S sjuejees "oSIN
00z'‘ey Bupyined swieH
000°S2 WbIAYS ues|D (euld
0ze'veoL (aueameN) swbIAYS
000°002 Joyoadsu| Buyooy
GL9'G L# uns|ing buyooy uiapon
goL‘oze’l Buyooy usepo 18160
LLy'ses (WOV) slaued [lem [e1e _
9ze'sec’e (opisienry) sjaued |leM [BI9N
000°0S Buiddoisali4
000°s8Y (ewnog) Buyooidany
12L'G6 Buyooidiayepn
(890'9.}) 0£0°'L.8°S uonovjoid WL HI £8.60
000G V# uga|ing
009'0LL W SHOMPOOAA Yoy [|eIsul] 2980
00¥'881 (>HoMIIIN puBJL) SHOMIIN
000'05¢ Bupioo|g Jousju] 1980
000052 Bunjoolg jooy 0980
(000°s) 000°658 Ayuadied H3 €L160
000°'0S SJOA0D JUIOf uoisuedxd |jejsu|
69¢'8EL S19A07) Jul0f uoisuedx3
000°086°L (weq uep) [ejusweuwsQ B "oSIN
005'282 Buiwelg dn-joeg |oued [e1len
1obpng S ) papiemy jobpng apo)
Buiureway pajediopuy sjoRUOD pasiAay uonduasaqg 1509

STIVH LIFIHXH AJIN




¢0/s/e

9Joy amuap utof v quny /ipreyry :4q paredarg
000'02 say)[eloadg (lejsu) 0680
868°L syoey 180D
Zvo'ee (o) seuossacdy 1910}
6055 sainsojoug asuoydsjo L
009'62. (-dinb3 paoueapy) suonined ajqesadQ
990°'¢ suoniued USSN SJiM
€CL'6 (a20) sieuiqe/siaysinbunx3 ai
€0c'8l . (s1onpoud [e}o UOAT) S19x007
000°'S spJens) Jaulo)/|[eM lleIsu|
€516 (01d-u)) spseng Jauio/|lem
y8L'LCL SI8ANOT
802’1 (A1adeiq JoenUOD) Suiepn) afoIqNDd
886'GY (senjeioads joenuo)) suoniied 190l
osv'y syexoeIg AL
ov8'ove sdluoipieq £6560
$6S'SEl yovLvS'L sonjedads HI 09860
¥82°'02 L# upang
000°G2l [99}S [eanongS uied dn-yonoy
¥96'y L# upejing Bunuied H3H
L9¥'€0S (HgH) sBuuano) |lep/Bunuted
GSv's (aur-o1g) Bupyiep juswaned
000'0¢C sjaued ([eM XIWIY
009'912 (21q0g) slisay pue jadied
0€2'vi8 ozzela]
006'892 (uosuyor Aq auQ 1adie)) syt Auenp/olwessd
000'090'¥ (puejeAs|D) sonsnody pue emlig
(8L0's2) rAAWAN N saysiuid H3 0£860
000'S L# unajing
£8T'veL') (WOV) llem urenn
09¢'62 (sse|9 s,qog) SMOPUIA 1801 L 1880
891'c9e alempieH ysiul4 [ieysy| 0880
005'8.¢ (uewuopy) jeusiely alempleH ysiui
yobpng $1S0) paplemy yobpng apo)
Buluteway pajedionuy sjoenuon pasiAay uonduasaq 1509

STIVH LIGIHXH AdIN




¢0/S/e

s1nua A utof v uny /ipreysy Aq paredarg

9J0g
G19'06 L# una|Ing |l Yyoso9|3
v.1'891 (apisianry) wuely aild
0L6'v¥L "d™ "D - uondsiold Bulnybin
6S6'cZ. WODSY - waysAg punog
0ZL'sZL'LL I yosyoa|3 12960
(s19'06) 651°29L°CL [ea11309]3 H3 €1660
¥2€'29 . L# une|ing ueb3 Apuy
26e'L9 1SaMpII - @dueleg pue isa] 15960
121'v8L 1Or - sjoqud 9ad 15960
000'0€8 IS3j - uonensuj 15960
029'8¥C'y 1ebu1e] - [eJo 199YS 15960
6+8'086'S Auedwo) ueb3 Apuy 1G960
(vze29) 8v6°'0L6°LL [ealueyodly HI 95660
L€L'2€6 apebug/uebg 15960
- LEL'ZEG uonodjoid a4 HI 65660
Lze'ovi'e Auedwo) ueb3 Apuy 15960
- Lze‘ovl'e Buiquinid H3 #5660
- 695'269'L Jo(puIyds L£960
- 695°259°} swajsAg Bulkeauod HI £1660
¥99°1L sSu9aJog uondafold |ieisu)
Gee'y (senjerpads pasueApy) suaalog uojoafosd
9/g'ee (ao9) siew Jooig Ajug
(6v6°S) 9/g'ce sButysiung H3 £0660
00001 }omase) [e1on
ove'le (peiiddy) jusudinb3 sooQ Buipeo
GLL'¥92 (10S1) waisAg ssadoy Hunped
85v'822 (ynws-pioyess) Juswdinby uayoly
009'G1 £LL9bS yuswdinb3g H3 G8860
yebpng $)S09) paplemy yobpng apoo
Bujuseway pajedidiuy sjoenUO) pasiAay uopduasaq 3s0)

STIVH LIFIHXHd AdIN




co/s/e

ammua Jutof v Qunyy /ipreyry :Aq pazedaig

9j09
- - 607 00d
(vs2'62€) 0.9°‘€18'L 868°160°08 y.LL°G1S'L8 $3S0J joalig uononiisuo (ejol
yobpng $)S0) pepiemy jebpng 8po)H
Bujuieway pajedionuy sjoeIu0) pasiAnay uonduosag 1S09)

STIVH LIAIHXd AIN




BUILDING COMMITTEE REPORT
To
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
March 27, 2002

Wotk progtessed well on Phase 1B, DeVos Lobby Addition. Metal stud framing is complete
throughout with the only drywall work remaining. Tetrazzo flooring is being installed on
schedule and the grinding is complete on the main level. Grinding the upper level and ramp is in
process, and final polishing will commence when nearer completion of other wotk. Wood
paneling for the west wall of the Lobby is being installed and the architectural glass doots for the
openings into Keeler Lobby have been fabricated.

In Phase 2, the Grand Gallety structural concrete subcontractor, Kent/Tillman Construction has
placed formwork and reinforcing steel for the first four sections of the street level floor slab.
Mechanical and electrical trades are continuing with underground and in-slab activities. Slab on
grade, columns and the main roof support piets continue as well. The Grand Gallery concrete
has achieved 70% complete, overall Kent/Tillman has reached 30% complete.

Demolition of the Police Building and Hall of Justice has been completed including removal of
the old foundations and utilities. Pitsch Wrecking Company has removed their equipment from
the site. Diversco Excavating has moved in and cleared the balance of the site for foundation
work.

Case/Millgard, the deep foundation subcontractor has completed approximately 85% of the
Exhibit Hall caissons and is progressing very well. They ate expected to wrap up in March,
substantially earlier than theitr May 6 deadline.

On February 15, Ethardt/Hunt visited the facility of Moore Flame Cutting, the Dettoit atea steel
fabricator who is building the Grand Gallery Columns. The quality of the components looked
good, as did progress. Steel deliveries began late to Grand Rapids from the plant of Steel Setvice
Cortp. in Jackson, Mississippi. The steel trailers ate staged off site for erection to begin in early
Match. The first crane (of at least 3) that will be used for steel operations was delivered and is
being assembled.

90% of the Exhibit Hall Subcontracts have been issued, and mobilization meetings with the
critical path subcontractors are being conducted.



" Erhardt

CONSTRUCTION

MBE /WBE Participation

Commitments for MBE/WBE Participation continued to grow in February, 2002. With the
Phase 2 buyout nearing completion, the dollats committed to MBE/WBE contractors
reached $10,421,440. The percentage of MBE/WBE also remained steady at 15% in the
areas that had opportunity.

Ace Steel Erection was awarded a Change Otrder to their prime Subcontract for the Phase 2E
slab on metal deck reinforcing, contributing $186,393 to the increased commitments.

Erhardt/Hunt, A Joint Venture
201 Monroe Avenue NW, Suite 100 Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503
Phone: (616) 451-9481  Fax: (616) 451-9554




%ST ovy I 0TS Lp0°cZZ’898  TV.LOL
%G1 19970618 Smd3y J0ie], X P 89T1$ [eom3[g Y2339 1296
%L1 009°95$ Sunureq szows PR X L9Y'piss s3umas0)) e pUE Sunureg Fonureg HH
%001 Ssvgs Sunureq surr-01g X Sspes Sudmg Sunpreg Supureq surporg
%08 ¥S0'v1Z8 I[LL 3SIMPTI X 006°89Z$ I, onIeIa) Ul 9odre) vosuyo[
%L1 296128 agL X 00Z¥5Z$ $I00(J POO/\ PUE YIOM[IN oM PUSIL
%11 00821Z$ adyr X 000°086°1$ STERI ST SYI0/\ UOI] ure(y UEA
%8 000°00¥$ 'STD A 000°58¥$ Jugoordang Lexdg uoponnsuo) Twmog
%zl 00Z°L8¥$ adgr A 000°090%$ —sZume) % ealq UODANSUOD) PUERAI)
%11 9z8‘cz$ agy A 009°9128$ 1dre) saruedwo)) 31905 o
%C1 1296128 adL X 781°0¢8°1$ auels) pue fruosely Guosepy uuky
%E1 066'81$ Supme) swRH -
0¢LY1LS s1daou0)) voponmsuOD X $69°652°2$ [[eAUTRIND) PUE S|PUE] [ER S[EIN PUE SSE[S) [EINIDAMITY
%€ 189'8Z% Supme) swpH X 0Z€YZ0°1$ WA aerTaEeN N
%S1 65609% $301AT3G [EIUSWUOTIAUH 29 GOREMSU] X -
YL1°009°18 Suiqumiq syoo1g X
000°26$ qng FGW Bond21034 211 Jpedng X
Oom.Nww uOuu.«H-GOuASw mmu)._,. w~OH_GOU dOwdﬂ—O—.. W
001°0+$ Suiqumig yotoN do, X
YA xAL uoRnd3301g 21 spidey puero A LP1°109°918 TesTUeydsy wedq (4dpoy 1696
%01 00918 $901A33G JUUTIY X SP6'S1$ s3unaa0)) e pue Junureq $30383033( 3[0D) A8 /756
%€ 68Z°'s$ suoneqese] 12d1e) YOI X 0S6'€L1$ 32dre)) "ou] 3adre) vosuyo[ 976
%G1 0055 Supme) swPH X 16v'cecs ssumR) % ealiq SIEDOSSY BWISIY  GZG6
%21 020°65+% agL
000°s.2$ [993S Tep]
080°566$ D77 Suneopqeq reg sary Y, A 000°01+41$ [991§ [eamaonng vonesodio)) DWUIIG [T 7916
%62 126298 S[EI3A] [PERSNPU] UESTYITA A 0009128 [993¢ Teridnng Juussuiduyg » A[ddng PaIg 1916
%€l 000°L$ Luosepy sey Jig X :
000°1$ Lruose gog X 16.°€9% Axgosep yoIg Argosepy aqeiB8mg 16
%001 89¢0z$ XN PIN X 89¢0z$ 323 [BPW-UO-SqelS NP €hP6
%001 806°L92$ uondAIF [P3IS DY X 8062928 Teqay UORdAIY PAS DY ZHh6
%S1 SIS°GET 1S sewiL X $9.°9¢z'8$ 3121200) MU IUTO[ VBUNIL/IUSY]  9¢hG
%E1 00081¢ $301A13G TORINNSUOY) olrepy X
000°00C$ £ddng Sunoenuoy) wnruay X 005,918 sromypreg 03SIAIT  ZZH6
%11 000LL$ Sunoenuo) suing I3 02¥669% uopfowa saruedwo) PSIY 1246
%G1 000'c$ duneardxy 5,997 X
00s$ Tesodsi( paouespy A 00s‘czs JpompIey [rEH SOAQ Supeaeoxy ewsNAQ 9146
% unowry J0)0ENUOY) ssprunuodd | unoury IO JO uonduIdISI IOpUI A /I010EnU0IgNg apo)
F9M /TGN aJgM/dJ9an FaM/agn denuo) 180D

dLVA OL Fd@iIvAYV SLOVIILNODL9NS
AIVINNS NOLLY "DILLYVd A9M/H9N



Wd Z0'S ¥ 20/L/¢ VO PAvEd

696°L018
180°ce$
918°¢89¢
Sov'6ris
VAN (114
S1€°0828
85¥°8T
9Z¢TTTC8
0529¢s$
sor‘oze’is
08¢s8$
S19'2028
0¢+'598
6€L°6$
$98°612$
09L°LS$
0bs‘8z1$
00Z°6Z$
ovLivs
192°486$
000°0vC$
000°208'+$
00Z°122$

Z22ZZ2Z22Z222Z22ZZZ2Z22Z22Z7Z2Z727Z2Z

02ZeII3 ]

38eu8ig 4qqo] sopQq
preog 1opeay

s3po Surpeo] » s1oo( Sumion
SIOOCT YT [e2RIA
juawdmby Surpreq
wmemdmbry 3o1a19g pooyy
SPUed (e

soddng - sremprery 100y
Bugooy

33210U07) 15821
SIOJE[EIST PUE SIOILAI[
1onddng - arempaey 3001
$I00(] PEAYIAQD

e/ DR ssep
8ugooy

SpuEd WP

1arddng - frommA

[99S ssapuTeRg

1anddng - suoisswry
STe\ 1910007

SUOSsTED)

SN -TUIA

BTy Aeg
sudrg qore(
soonaEQ

Surpuey panddy

£uedwo)) 300 peayrap)
Lageg ogyesy,

YHwS-pIojyeIs

dnoisy sprs1aany

UEIION V'S

Sugooy wapop

"2U] ‘s9mISNpPU] U07)-SSING
uonezod1on) 101eAS[T P[PUNYIS
UBUIO V'S

Luedwo)) 100(] praysaa
ssudrauy ssepo

Sugooy e[

STEIR 2@ SSELD) [eaTudANRIY
s19npo1g poojy 4afre pueln)
3je37) UoI] I3UWNoY)
£uedwon) suoag 190
UORDNIISUOD) JIATY PUEID)
UOREPUNO, 3587

Auedwo)) 2 pPyreg

L£96
2056
1056
00s6
8¥6
186
1Lv6
(444
sh6
6
1744
L1v6

uonedpnred M /G o) Lrunsodd mopm s1venuo]

Yo

umowry
A/ JIN

J030enU0))
H9M /9N

saprunaoddQ | junoury
HIM/FIWN ~ "oenuo)

3p0A\ Jo uondposagy

JOpUIA /3010enU0dqNg

3po)
150D




VAN ANDEL ARENA WEEKLY

Item VII
DATE EVENT EC ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Mar 20 | Griffins vs Milwaukee AH | Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
Griffins JS Banquet A 6P-7P Group welcome center
Thur, Mar 21 | Available
Fri, Mar 22 Kenny Chesney MS | Arena 9:00 AM Load-in
2:00 PM Chair set
4:00 PM Sound check
6:30 PM Doors open
7:30P-7:48P Carolyn Dawn Johnson
7:53P-8:20P Phil Vasser
8:40P-9:15P Sara Evans
9:40P-11P Kenny Chesney
10:30 PM Load-out
Kenny Chesney JS Banquet C/D 6A-9P Crew catering
Sat, Mar 23 Griffins vs Wilkes-Barre MS Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Hockey game
Griffins IS Banquet A 6:30P-7:30P Group welcome center
Rylee’s Ace Hardware JS Banquet B 6P-7:30P GRAHA mini-nite
GRAHA JS Banquet C 6P-7:30P Grandville Ice Dawgs
Sun, Mar 24 Available
Mon, Mar 25 | Available
Tue, Mar 26 Available
Wed, Mar 27 | Available
Thur, Mar 28 | Available
Fri, Mar 29 Stars on Ice AH | Arena 8:00 AM Load-in
11:00 AM Zamboni driver needed
12P-3P Lighting focus, fog starting
2:00 PM Chair set (only 200 chairs)
3P-4:30P Bowl closed for practice
4:00 PM Ushers placing flyers on seats
6:30 PM Doors
7:35PM Show
8:40P-9P Intermission
9P-10:10P Show
10:10 PM Show over/Load-out
Sat, Mar 30 Griffins vs Rochester AH | Arena 10A-12:30P Team practice
2:00 PM Doors for high school pre-game
3P-5P High school pre-game
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Hockey game
10P-10:30P Post-game skate
Griffins JS Banquet A/B 6:30P-7:30P Group welcome center/T-shirt redemption
Sun, Mar 31 Easter Sunday
Mon, Apr 1 Available
Tue, Apr 2 ‘Nsync AH | Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Wed, Apr 3 Available
Thur, Apr 4 Available
Fri, Apr 5 Available
Sat, Apr 6 Rampage vs Toronto MS | Arena 7:30P-10:30P | Rampage preseason game
Sun, Apr 7 Available
Mon, Apr 8 Available




Tue, Apr 9 Available

Wed, Apr 10 | Available

Thur, Apr 11 | Available

Fri, Apr 12 Available

Sat, Apr 13 Available

Sun, Apr 14 Available

Mon, Apr 15 | Available

Tue, Apr16 | Available

Wed, Apr 17 | Available

Thur, Apr 18 | US vs China MS | Arena 7:30 PM Volleyball game
Fri, Apr 19 Available

Sat, Apr 20 Rampage vs Detroit AH | Arena 7:30P-10:30P | Rampage season opener
Sun, Apr 21 Available




GRAND CENTER WEEKLY - YEAR 2002

DATE EVENT ROOM TIME FUNCTION EC CONSTRUCTION
WED. MARCH 20 MI ASSOC FOR THE ED OF YOUNG GH/ NOON-8P MOVE IN MC
CHILDREN WA,KR,BL,MR/ 1P-5P MOVE IN
GRSO - CLASSICAL Vil DVv/ 9A-NOON SYMPHONY 101 TOURS ST
BARTOK & BEETHOVEN 3:30P-6P REHEARSAL
7:30P-10P REHEARSAL
WOMEN’S EXPO EH,WH/ 8A-9P MOVE IN MF
THUR MARCH 21 MI ASSOC FOR THE ED OF YOUNG GH/ 8A-11A MOVE IN MC
CHILDREN 11:30A-6:30P EXHIBITS
WA, KR,BLMR/ 8:30A-4:30P GENERAL SESSION
10:30A-4:30P GENERAL SESSION
GRSO - CLASSICAL VIII DV/ 4:30P-7:30P MIC HANG ST
BARTOK & BEETHOVEN 7:30P-10P REHEARSAL
WOMEN’S EXPO EH,WH/ 8A-NOON MOVEIN MF
3P-8P SHOW
FRL. MARCH 22 MI ASSOC FOR THE ED OF YOUNG GH/ 9A-6P EXHIBITS MC
CHILDREN WA,KR,BL,MR/ 8:30A-4:30P GENERAL SESSION
10:30A-4:30P GENERAL SESSION
GRSO — CLASSICAL VIII DV/ 6:45P OPEN TO UPBEAT ST
BARTOK & BEETHOVEN 7P-7:30P UPBEAT
8P-10:30P PERFORMANCE
WOMEN’S EXPO EH,WH/ 11A-8P SHOW MF
SAT. MARCH 23 MI ASSOC FOR THE ED OF YOUNG GH/ 9A-3P EXHIBITS MC
CHILDREN 3p-7P MOVE OUT
WA,KR,BL,MR/ 8:30A-4:30P GENERAL SESSION
10:30A-4:30P GENERAL SESSION
GRSO - CLASSICAL VIII DV,BR/ 8:30A-4P AUDITIONS ST
BARTOK & BEETHOVEN DV/ 1P-4:30P REHEARSAL
6:45P OPEN TO UPBEAT
7P-7:30P UPBEAT
8P-10:30P PERFORMANCE
10:30P MOVE OUT
WOMEN’S EXPO EH,WH/ 10A-8P SHOW MF
SUN. MARCH 24 WOMEN’S EXPO EH,WH/ 10A-5P SHOW MF
S5P-MID MOVE OUT
DIANA KRALL Dv/ NOONOSP MOVEIN ST
6:30P DOORS TO KEELER
P DOORS TO SEATING
7:30P-10P PERFORMANCE
10P-MID MOVE OUT
MON. MARCH 25 BUDDY: THE BUDDY HOLLY STORY - DV/ 2P-6P HOUSE STRIP ST
BTG
TUES. MARCH 26 BUDDY: THE BUDDY HOLLY STORY — DV/ 8A-5P MOVE IN (9 HOURS) ST
BTG 7:30P-10P PERFORMANCE
HOPE COLLEGE BR/ 5P-6P MOVE IN MC
6P-7:30P BANQUET
7:30P-8P MOVE OUT
STEVEN CURTIS CHAPMAN WA/ 10AM-5PM MOVE IN ST
6:30P DOORS
7:30P-10P PERFORMANCE
10P-1A MOVE OUT
WED. MARCH 27 BUDDY: THE BUDDY HOLLY STORY - DV/ 7:30P-10P PERFORMANCE ST
BTG
THUR MARCH 28 BUDDY: THE BUDDY HOLLY STORY - DV/ 2P-4:30P PERFORMANCE ST
BTG 7:30P-10P PERFORMANCE
FRI. MARCH 29 BUDDY: THE BUDDY HOLLY STORY - DV/ 8P-10:30P PERFORMANCE ST

BTG




DATE EVENT ROOM TIME FUNUIIUN B (R AR FY X S PV
IF LOVING YOU IS WRONG I DON'T WA/ MOVE IN ST
WANT TO BE RIGHT DOORS
PERFORMANCE
MOVE OUT
SAT. MARCH 30 BUDDY: THE BUDDY HOLLY STORY - DV/ 2P-4:30P PERFORMANCE ST
BTG 8P-10:30P PERFORMANCE
SUN. MARCH 31 BUDDY: THE BUDDY HOLLY STORY - DV/ 3P-5:30P PERFORMANCE ST
BTG 5:30P-9:30P MOVE OUT
MON. APRIL 1 BUDDY: THE BUDDY HOLLY STORY — DV/ 9A-NOON HOUSE RESTORE ST
BTG
TUES. APRIL 2 FIRST REGIONAL ROBOTICS WA,1/3 GH/ 8A-6P MOVE IN MF
COMPETITION BL/
WED. APRIL 3 FIRST REGIONAL ROBOTICS WA,1/3 GH/ 8A-6P REHEARSAL MF
COMPETITION BL/
BEAR AND THE BIG BLUE HOUSE DV/ 8A-5P MOVE IN ST
THURS. APRIL 4 FIRST REGIONAL ROBOTICS WA,1/3 GH/ 8A-8P REHEARSAL MF
COMPETITION BL/
BEAR AND THE BIG BLUE HOUSE DV/ 10:30A-NOON PERFORMANCE ST
7P-8:30P PERFORMANCE
HAMMELL MUSIC PIANO SALE KR/ MOVE IN MC
FRI. APRIL 5 FIRST REGIONAL ROBOTICS WA,1/3 GH/ 8A-9P SHOW MF
COMPETITION BL/
BEAR AND THE BIG BLUE HOUSE DV/ 10:30A-NOON PERFORMANCE ST
7P-8:30P
HAMMELL MUSIC PIANO SALE KR/ 10A-6P SALE MC
SAT. APRIL 6 FIRST REGIONAL ROBOTICS WA,1/3 GH/ 8A-5P SHOW MF
COMPETITION BL/
5P-10P MOVE OUT
BEAR AND THE BIG BLUE HOUSE DV/ 10:30A-NOON PERFORMANCE ST
2P-3:30P PERFORMANCE
HAMMELL MUSIC PIANO SALE KR/ 10A-6P SALE MC
6P-10P MOVE OUT
SUN. APRIL 7 BEAR AND THE BIG BLUE HOUSE DV/ 1P-2:30P PERFORMANCE ST
4:30P-6P PERFORMANCE
6P-10P MOVE OUT
MON. APRIL 8 MI PETROLEUM ASSOCIATION GH,EH,WH/ 8A-6P MOVE IN MC
TUES. APRIL 9 MI PETROLEUM ASSOCIATION GH,EH,WH/ 8A-3P MOVE IN MC
5P-7:30P SHOW
GRSO - ACCESS CONCERT WA/ 8A-NOON MOVE IN ST
7:30P-10P REHEARSAL
CANADIAN BRASS DV/ 8A-5P MOVEIN ST
7:30P DOORS
8P-10:30P PERFORMANCE
10:30P-MID MOVE OUT |
WED. APRIL 10 MI PETROLEUM ASSOCIATION GH,EH,WH/ 10A-5P SHOW MC 1_
GRSO — ACCESS CONCERT WA/ T0:45A-12:30P PERFORMANCE ST “
12:30P-4:30P MOVE OUT
THURS. APRIL 11 MI PETROLEUM ASSOCIATION GH,EH,WH/ 10A-3P SHOW MC |
3:30P-8:30P MOVE OUT |
GRSO - POPS VI DV/ 8A-5P MOVE IN ST |
NEIL SEDAKA 7P-10P REHEARSAL |
GRABILL ENTERPRISES WA/ 1P-6P MOVE IN MC B
FRI. APRIL 12 MI PETROLEUM ASSOCIATION GH,EH,WH/ 8A-12P MOVE OUT MC m
GRSO - POPS VI DV/ 8P-10P PERFORMANCE ST

NEIL SEDAKA




DATE EVENT ROOM TIME FUNCTION EC LU 1 RU £ 2w s
GRABILL ENTERPRISES WA/ 10A-5P MOVE IN MC
7P-12:30A SESSION
BL/ 8A-1A VIP AREA |
CITY MEETING BR/ 8A-NOON MEETING RS |
SAT. APRIL 13 GRSO — POPS VI DV/ 8P-10P PERFORMANCE ST 1
NEIL SEDAKA m
GRABILL ENTERPRISES WA/ 10A-10:30A DOORS MC |
BL/ 10:30A-3P MEETING m
3p-6P SESSION |
GH/ 6P-7:30P DINNER _
wa/ 7P DOORS _
gP-1A SESSION _
BV 8A-1P VIP AREA |
SUN. APRIL 14 GRSO — POPS VI DV/ 3p-5P PERFORMANCE ST d
NEIL SEDAKA 5P-8P MOVE OUT |
GRABILL ENTERPRISES WA/ 9A DOORS MC “
10A-NOON MEETING |
NOON-4P MOVE OUT
BL/ 8A-5P VIP AREA |
MON. APRIL 15 SPARTAN STORES GH,WA/ 7A-5P MOVE IN MF _
KR,BL/ |
WIZARD OF OZ DV/ 8A-9:30A MOVE IN ST _
9:30A DOORS
10A-11:10A PERFORMANCE 7
11:45A DOORS
12:15P-1:30P PERFORMANCE _
1:30P-3:30P MOVE OUT |
TUES. APRIL 16 SPARTAN STORES GH,WA/ 7:00AM-4PM MOVE IN MF i
KR,BL/
GRSO — CLASSICAL IX DV/ 8A-NOON MOVE IN ST
7:30P-10P REHEARSAL
WED. APRIL 17 SPARTAN STORES GH,WA/ 8AM-5PM SHOW MF
KR,BLMR/
GRSO — CLASSICAL IX KEELER/ 9AM-NOON SYMPHONY 101 ST
DV/ 3:30P-6P REHEARSAL
7:30P-10:30P REHEARSAL
THURS. APRIL 18 | SPARTAN STORES GH,WA/ 8:00AM-4:00PM SHOW MF
KR,BL,MR/
4:00PM-8:00PM MOVE OUT |
GRSO — CLASSICAL IX DV/ 4P-7P MIC HANG ST |
7P-10:30P REHEARSAL |
EXAMINERS OF ENGINEERING & WH/ 2P-4P MOVE IN MC _
SURVEYING |
FRI. APRIL 19 GRSO - CLASSICAL IX DV/ 6:45P OPEN FOR UPBEAT ST _
7P-7:30P UPBEAT _
8P-10P PERFORMANCE |
MI ASSOCIATION OF AMBULANCE WA,GH/ 8AM-6PM MOVE IN MF _
SERVICES IPM-12A EXHIBITS/PARTY |
EXAMINERS OF ENGINEERING & WH/ 6:30A-8A SET UP MC “
SURVEYING 8A-SP EXAM J
5P-6:30P CLEAN UP |
SAT. APRIL 20 GRSO - CLASSICAL 1X DV/ 1P-5P REHEARSAL ST m
6:45P OPEN FOR UPBEAT
7P-7:30P UPBEAT
8P-10P PERFORMANCE
10P-MID MOVE OUT
MI ASSOCIATION OF AMBULANCE GH/ 7AM-3:30PM EXHIBITS MF
SERVICES 7PM-12AM DINNER




DATE EVENT KUUM 1viE Fulve 1wy — i
3PM-5PM MOVE OUT
EXAMINERS OF ENGINEERING & WH/ 6:30A-8A SET UP MC
SURVEYING 8A-5P EXAM
5P-6:30P MOVE QUT
DESTINY TEAM WA/ 8:00A MOVE IN MF
1:30P-10:30P MEETING
10:30P-MID MOVE OUT
SUN. APRIL 21 ANDRE RIEU DV/ 8A-5P MOVE IN ST
7P DOORS
7:30P-10P PERFORMANCE
10P-MID MOVE OUT
MON. APRIL 22
TUES. APRIL 23 MICHIGAN SCHOOL BUSINESS WA,GH/ NOON-5P MOVE IN MF
QFFICIALS KR/
WED. APRIL 24 MICHIGAN SCHOOL BUSINESS WA,GH/ 8A-12:30P MOVE IN MF
OFFICIALS KR/ 2P-5P SHOW
THURS. APRIL 25 MICHIGAN SCHOOL BUSINESS WA,GH/ 11A-2P SHOW MF
OFFICIALS KR/ 2P-5P MOVE OUT
FRI. APRIL 26 MICHIGAN SCHOOL BUSINESS WA,GH/ 8A-NOON MOVE OUT MF
OFFICIALS KR/
SWEET ADELINE’S REGION #2 WA/ 8A-10A SET UP MC
COMPETITION BR/ 10A-NOON JUDGES
5P DOORS
6P-10P COMPETITION
TOSCA - OPERA DV/ 4 HOUR CALL POSSIBLE LIGHT HANG ST
A
GALLAGHER DV/ MOVE IN ST
DOORS
PERFORMANCE
MOVE OUT
SAT. APRIL 27 EPISCOPAL DIOCESE OF WEST 2/3 GH/ 8A-2P MOVE IN MF
MICHIGAN 3P-5:30PM MEETING
MOVE OUT
SWEET ADELINE’S REGION #2 1/3 GH/ 8A-10:30A SET UP MC
COMPETITION 10:30A-3:30P PHOTOS
WA/ 11:30A DOORS
12:30P-5:30P COMPETITION
6P-9P MOVE OUT
TOSCA - OPERA DV/ 8A-6P MOVE IN ST
SUN. APRIL 28 TOSCA - OPERA DV/ 8A-6P MOVE-IN ST
7P-11P REHEARSAL
JARS OF CLAY WA/ 8A-5P MOVE IN ST
6:30P DOORS
7:30P-10:30P PERFORMANCE
10:30P-1:30A MOVE OUT
MON. APRIL 29 TOSCA - OPERA DV/ 8A-5P WORK CALL ST
7P-11P REHEARSAL
TUES. APRIL 30 TOSCA - OPERA DV/ 8A-5P WORK CALL ST
7P-11P REHEARSAL
MEUER SERVICE AWARDS BANQUET GH/ 8A-3P MOVE IN MC
3P-5:30P REHEARSEL
KR/ 5:15P-6:15P RECEPTION
GH/ 5:30P-7P RECEPTION
7P-10P BANQUET
10P-MID MOVE OUT




